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SUMMARY
1.

The Facilities:

StoneRidge Poplar Run
440 East Lincoln Ave.
Myerstown, PA 17067
StoneRidge Towne Centre
7 West Park Ave.
Myerstown, PA 17067

2.

The Provider:

StoneRidge Retirement Living
440 East Lincoln Avenue
Myerstown, PA 17067

3.

Admissions Contact:

IL – Kristine Tobias
SNF & PC – Tosha Welker
StoneRidge Retirement Living
440 East Lincoln Avenue
Myerstown, PA 17067
Phone: 717-866-3200

4.

Property Description:

StoneRidge Poplar Run is located in a suburban setting on
approximately 30 acres of land. The facility comprises
113 high-rise apartment units, 31 single-level cottages,
36 personal care beds and 60 skilled-nursing beds.
StoneRidge Towne Centre is located in the Borough of
Myerstown, PA. It contains 152 skilled nursing.

5.

Minimum Age:

StoneRidge Retirement Living is designed for and accepts
qualified applicants who have attained the age of 55.

6.

Affiliations:

Evangelical Congregational Church
StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc
StoneRidge Family Medicine, Inc.
Church of God Home, Inc. (Effective January 1, 2014)
The Orchards at Marsh Run (Effective January 1, 2014)
Schoolyard Square (Effective August 1, 2014)
Countryside Christian Community (Effective July 1, 2020)

7.

Resident Population:

On December 31, 2020 the resident population
consisted of 374 residents among Independent
Living, Personal Care and Skilled Nursing.

8.

Sample Fee Structure:

One-bedroom apartment:
Entrance Fee: $78,200
Monthly Charge: $2,502 (Single), $2,721 (Double)
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RESPONSES TO SECTION 7 OF PA ACT 1984-82
(1)

StoneRidge Retirement Living (StoneRidge) is a not-for-profit Pennsylvania Corporation
organized in 1929. StoneRidge is qualified for exemption from Federal taxes
Under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(2)

The names and business addresses of the Board of Trustees (officer titles listed in bold) and
the chief executive officer are listed below:
Chairman: Carson Ritchie, 440 E. Lincoln Ave., Myerstown, PA 17067
Vice Chairman: Scott Artz, 440 E. Lincoln Ave., Myerstown, PA 17067
President & CEO: Steven J. Reiter, 440 E. Lincoln Ave., Myerstown, PA 17067
Trustee: Jill Smith, 440 E. Lincoln Ave., Myerstown, PA 17067

(3)

(4)

Listing of the following information for those names in 2 above:
(A)

The CEO has 29 years in the long-term care industry.

(B)

StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities provides and bills
management services to StoneRidge Retirement Living under contract.

(C)

No trustee, officer or management employee of StoneRidge Retirement Living
has ever been convicted of a felony or been involved in any manner in
charges of fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of
property. None of the above are subject to currently effective injunctive or restrictive
orders nor have any of them had licenses suspended or revoked relating to any
business activity or affecting the operation of any foster care facility, nursing home,
retirement home, home for the aged, or any facility registered with the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any other state.

StoneRidge Retirement Living is affiliated with StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities,
Inc. (name change from New Dawn Christian Community Services, Inc.), a Pennsylvania
nonprofit corporation. Effective January 1, 2014, StoneRidge Retirement Living is affiliated
with Church of God Home, Inc. and The Orchards at Marsh Run, both of which are 501(c)(3)
Pennsylvania nonprofit corporations. Effective August 1, 2014, StoneRidge Retirement
Living is affiliated with Schoolyard Square, a 501(c)(3) Pennslvania nonprofit corporation.
Effective July 1, 2020, StoneRidge Retirement Living is affiliated with Countryside Christian
Community, a 501(c)(3) Pennslvania nonprofit corporation. StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. is the sole member of all entities. StoneRidge Retirement Living also has
a covenant relationship with the Evangelical Congregational Church. See Note 1 of the
attached Audited Financial Statements (Exhibit 1) for additional affiliations.
Neither the Evangelical Congregational Church, StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities
nor any other affiliate of StoneRidge Retirement Living or any other person or entity is
responsible for the liabilities of StoneRidge Retirement Living or the fulfillment of its
contractual obligations to its Residents.

(5)

Brief description of StoneRidge Poplar Run & StoneRidge Towne Centre communities
StoneRidge Poplar Run is a continuing care retirement community comprising 113 high-rise
apartment units, 31 single-level cottages, 36 personal care beds and 60 skilled-nursing beds.
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There are fourteen apartment options to choose from and four types of cottages. The facility is
completely interconnected with the exception of the cottages. A large dining
room is contained within for the independent living residents as well as a
small café and a fine dining restaurant. The facility is located at 440/450 East Lincoln Avenue,
Myerstown, PA 17067.
The Organization has completed an approximately 26,000-square-foot addition to its Poplar Run
campus, including a new dining venue, a pool and fitness suite, and a multipurpose room and
renovated approximately 53,000 square feet of existing building space for six apartments, office
space, library and gathering space, including an ice cream parlor, general store, craft room and
cinema facilities.
StoneRidge Towne Centre is located in the Borough of Myerstown, PA. It contains 152 skilled
nursing beds. It has a Specialized Care Unit serving residents with Alzheimer’s disease or other
types of dementia. The facility is located at 7 West Park Ave., Myerstown, PA 17067.
(6)

List of services under the contract
As part of their residential care, the residents receive a monthly meal credit (dollar amount
determined by the resident agreement), all utilities, basic
cable TV service, flat linen and laundry service, limited housekeeping service, personal laundry
facilities, trash collection, lawn and grounds care, library, scheduled transportation and access to
social, recreational and related activities.
The residents also have access to maintenance services which would result in an additional cost
if utilized. Each unit is equipped with an emergency alarm system. If StoneRidge personnel are
required to respond to a residents use of the emergency alarm system, the resident will incur an
additional cost.
Additionally, personal care and nursing care are available, as needed, in the healthcare
center at an additional cost equal to the prevailing rates. All monthly fees paid by existing
residents, including personal care and nursing care fees, are subject to change upon notice.
The fees are set forth hereafter. It is expected that the fees will be increased to cover
increases in the cost of providing services to residents as deemed necessary.

(7)

Fees required of residents
StoneRidge Retirement Living charges a one-time entrance fee for our Traditional and Asset
Preservation Plans, due upon occupancy, with a monthly service fee assessed thereafter.
(There is no entrance fee associated with the Monthly Plan). The monthly service fee can be
increased with 30 days advance written notice.
The entrance fee will be paid with an initial deposit of $2,500. The initial deposit will be applied
against the entrance fee upon occupancy of the apartment unit by the resident or if a monthly
rental, it will be applied as a credit to the maintenance fee.

The current entrance and monthly fees are provided in ATTACHMENT 1.
A history of the monthly fees is provided in ATTACHMENT 3.
StoneRidge Retirement Living is currently managing two different contracts from current and
prior owners. Available refunds are predicated upon the type of contract signed by the given
resident(s).
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a) Fee for Service (FFS) contracts entered into prior to the ownership by StoneRidge
Retirement Living entitle a resident to a refund of 60% to be made when the unit is
reoccupied and the entrance fee paid in full.
b) Contracts signed by StoneRidge Retirement Living:
1) Traditional Plan – contracts which entitle a resident to the following entrance fee
refund: Year 1: 80%, Year 2: 60%, Year 3: 45%, Year 4: 30%, Year 5 and
thereafter: 25%
2) Asset Preservation Plan – contracts which discount the entrance fee and have no
provision for a refund
3) Monthly Plan – contracts which require no entrance fee in lieu of a higher monthly
fee
Note: The refund is payable upon the resale of the unit and the entrance fee being paid in
full.
The monthly service fee will be billed to the resident or residents of each
apartment unit on or about the 1st day of every month. The fee will be paid in
advance. In addition, other charges such as the cost of guest meals payable
to StoneRidge Retirement Living will be billed in arrears. If a resident requires personal care
or skilled-nursing care in the facility, the resident will be charged the current
rate. A summary of the fees for personal care and skilled-nursing facility care are
provided in ATTACHMENT 2.
(8) Provisions for reserve funding
StoneRidge Retirement Living has established reserves to cover 10% of total operating
expenses excluding depreciation. Refer to the 2020 audited financial statements. The funds
are invested in a diverse portfolio which allows for monthly income accumulation and growth.
The trust escrow account has been established with PNC Bank, N.A.
(9) Audited Financial Statements – EXHIBIT 1
Attached as EXHIBIT 1 are audited financial statements of StoneRidge
Retirement Living, including:
(i)
(ii)

Balance sheet as of the end of the most recent fiscal year.
Statement of Operations as of the end of the most recent fiscal year.
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StoneRidge Retirement Living
StoneRidge Poplar Run
Schedule of Entrance and Monthly Fees Effective 01/01/21

Unit Type
Alcott
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Whitman
Dickinson
Byron
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III

Monthly Plan
Entrance Fee
Single Rate
$0
$2,744
$0
$3,047
$0
$3,400
$0
$3,653
$0
$4,442
$0
$5,876
$0
$5,010
$0
$5,283
$0
$6,200
$0
$3,610
$0
$4,843
$0
$5,499
$0
$5,565

Double Rate
$2,963
$3,266
$3,619
$3,872
$4,661
$6,095
$5,229
$5,502
$6,419
$3,829
$5,062
$5,718
$5,784

Unit Type
Alcott
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Whitman
Dickinson
Byron
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III

Fee for Service
Asset Preservation Plan
Entrance Fee
Single Rate
$51,200
$1,853
$56,950
$2,056
$61,700
$2,327
$66,200
$2,502
$90,200
$2,872
$103,250
$3,080
$108,300
$3,125
$118,450
$3,222
$175,000
$3,697
$63,500
$2,449
$105,250
$3,011
$126,900
$3,290
$143,900
$3,356

Double Rate
$2,072
$2,275
$2,546
$2,721
$3,091
$3,299
$3,344
$3,441
$3,916
$2,668
$3,230
$3,509
$3,575

Unit Type
Alcott
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Whitman
Dickinson
Byron
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III

Fee for Service
Traditional Plan
Entrance Fee
Single Rate
$60,500
$1,853
$67,300
$2,056
$72,900
$2,327
$78,200
$2,502
$106,600
$2,872
$3,080
$122,000
$128,000
$3,125
$140,000
$3,222
$205,000
$3,697
$75,000
$2,449
$124,400
$3,011
$3,290
$150,000
$170,000
$3,356

Double Rate
$2,072
$2,275
$2,546
$2,721
$3,091
$3,299
$3,344
$3,441
$3,916
$2,668
$3,230
$3,509
$3,575

Unit Type
Apartment 200
Apartment 201
Apartment 202
Apartment 204
Apartment 205

Fee for Service
Park Avenue
Entrance Fee
Single Rate
$255,000
$3,913
$260,000
$3,991
$3,790
$247,000
$3,012
$187,500
$155,500
$2,823

Double Rate
$4,132
$4,210
$4,009
$3,231
$3,042

Unit Type
Alcott
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II

Lifecare*
Monthly Plan
Entrance Fee
Single Rate
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Double Rate
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

* Lifecare contracts no longer offered by StoneRidge Retirement Living and no existing residents are covered under a Lifecare contract

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES
Effective 11/1/2020
NURSING CARE: Poplar Run

NURSING CARE: Towne Centre

Long Term Care, Semi-Private

$345.00/day

Long Term Care, Semi-Private

$345.00/day

Long Term Care, Private

$389.00/day

Long Term Care, Private

$389.00/day

PERSONAL CARE: Poplar Run
Private Room

$185.00/day

ADDITIONAL CHARGES AND/OR FEES:
Bed Hold (Nursing)

Per Diem Rate

Admission Processing Fee*

$300.00 ($20.00 for readmission from the community)

Disposal Deposit*

$250.00 (effective for new admissions)

Oxygen

Vendor Cost

Escort Service

$20.00 per hour

Beautician

Vendor Cost

Pharmacy

Vendor Cost

Transportation

$25.00 flat rate plus $.55 per mile

Transportation –Specialty Vehicle

$25.00 flat rate plus $.85 per mile

Telephone Connection Fee

Vendor Cost (Towne Centre Only)

Billable Medical Supplies
Guest Meals

Vendor Cost (Incontinence, Wound Care)
Breakfast - $3.50 Noon Meal - $8.00 Evening Meal - $5.00

The services of the following professionals will be billed by the provider: Attending Physician, Podiatrist, Eye Doctor, and
Psychiatrist. The responsibility for all charges is between the provider and the resident.
Physical, Occupational and Speech services will be billed at the Medicare fee schedule rates. We will bill Medicare and/or
insurance where applicable.
Invoice Terms: No finance charge will be assessed if paid within 30 days for active accounts. Thereafter, 1.5% per month on the
outstanding balance, plus $35.00 per month late fee.

Vendor costs or fees may be added for specialty equipment and/or supplies.
$150.00 fee charged to residents who, at their own request and without medical need to do so, are moved from one room to another.
* These fees are not covered by insurance and must be paid as an out-of-pocket expense. The Disposal Deposit is refundable when
all personal property has been removed from the room following discharge. The Admission Processing Fee is non-refundable.
POA/Responsible Party/Resident Initials:__________Date:___________

StoneRidge Retirement Living
StoneRidge Poplar Run
Summary of Historical Fees

Entrance Fees (Traditional & Asset Preservation Plans)

Unit Type
Alcott
Browning
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Whitman
Dickinson
Byron
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III
Park Avenue Apt. 200
Park Avenue Apt. 201
Park Avenue Apt. 202
Park Avenue Apt. 204
Park Avenue Apt. 205

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Lifecare
Unit Type
Alcott
Browning
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

FFS
Unit Type
Alcott
Browning
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Whitman
Dickinson
Byron
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III
Park Avenue Apt. 200
Park Avenue Apt. 201
Park Avenue Apt. 202
Park Avenue Apt. 204
Park Avenue Apt. 205

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Monthly Plan
Unit Type
Alcott
Browning
Lewis
Douglas
Conrad
Marshall
Taylor
Whitman
Dickinson
Byron
Garden Home
Cottage I
Cottage II
Cottage III

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2017
AP
51,200
NA
56,950
61,700
66,200
90,200
103,250
108,300
118,450
175,000
63,500
105,250
126,900
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Trad
60,500
NA
67,300
72,900
78,200
106,600
122,000
128,000
140,000
205,000
75,000
124,400
150,000
NA
255,000
260,000
247,000
187,500
155,500

2017
Single
2,668
NA
2,923
3,425
3,655
4,354
4,868
3,511
4,599
4,885
NA

Double
$
4,051
NA
$
4,306
$
4,808
$
5,038
$
5,737
$
6,251
$
4,894
$
5,982
$
6,268
NA

2017
Single
1,662
NA
1,847
2,095
2,255
2,594
2,784
2,825
2,914
3,349
2,207
2,721
2,976
NA
3,547
3,618
3,434
2,722
2,549

Double
$
1,863
NA
$
2,048
$
2,296
$
2,456
$
2,795
$
2,985
$
3,026
$
3,115
$
3,550
$
2,408
$
2,922
$
3,177
NA
$
3,748
$
3,819
$
3,635
$
2,923
$
2,750

2017
Single
2,553
NA
2,811
3,293
3,406
4,164
4,580
4,710
4,975
5,852
3,368
4,553
5,185
NA

Double
$
2,754
NA
$
3,012
$
3,494
$
3,607
$
4,365
$
4,781
$
4,911
$
5,176
$
6,053
$
3,569
$
4,754
$
5,386
NA

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2018
AP
51,200
NA
56,950
61,700
66,200
90,200
103,250
108,300
118,450
175,000
63,500
105,250
126,900
143,900
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

2018
Single
2,668
NA
2,923
3,425
3,655
4,354
4,868
3,511
4,599
4,885
NA

2018
Single
1,695
NA
1,884
2,137
2,300
2,646
2,840
2,882
2,972
3,416
2,251
2,775
3,036
3,097
3,618
3,690
3,503
2,776
2,600

2018
Single
2,586
NA
2,923
3,425
3,451
4,216
4,636
4,767
5,033
5,919
3,412
4,607
5,245
5,306

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Trad
60,500
NA
67,300
72,900
78,200
106,600
122,000
128,000
140,000
205,000
75,000
124,400
150,000
170,000
255,000
260,000
247,000
187,500
155,500

Double
4,106
NA
4,361
4,863
5,093
5,792
6,306
4,949
6,037
6,323
NA

Double
1,900
NA
2,089
2,342
2,505
2,851
3,045
3,087
3,177
3,621
2,456
2,980
3,241
3,302
3,823
3,895
3,708
2,981
2,805

Double
2,791
NA
3,128
3,630
3,656
4,421
4,841
4,972
5,238
6,124
3,617
4,812
5,450
5,511

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2019
AP
51,200 $
NA
56,950 $
61,700 $
66,200 $
90,200 $
103,250 $
108,300 $
118,450 $
175,000 $
63,500 $
105,250 $
126,900 $
143,900 $
NA
$
NA
$
NA
$
NA
$
NA
$

Trad
60,500
NA
67,300
72,900
78,200
106,600
122,000
128,000
140,000
205,000
75,000
124,400
150,000
170,000
255,000
260,000
247,000
187,500
155,500

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2020
AP
51,200 $
NA
56,950 $
61,700 $
66,200 $
90,200 $
103,250 $
108,300 $
118,450 $
175,000 $
63,500 $
105,250 $
126,900 $
143,900 $
NA
$
NA
$
NA
$
NA
$
NA
$

Trad
60,500
NA
67,300
72,900
78,200
106,600
122,000
128,000
140,000
205,000
75,000
124,400
150,000
170,000
255,000
260,000
247,000
187,500
155,500

2019
Single
Double
2,774 $
4,270
NA
NA
3,040 $
4,536
3,562 $
5,058
3,801 $
5,297
4,528 $
6,024
5,063 $
6,559
3,651 $
5,147
4,783 $
6,279
5,080 $
6,576
NA
NA

Single
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

2019
Single
Double
1,764 $
1,973
NA
NA
1,957 $
2,166
2,215 $
2,424
2,381 $
2,590
2,734 $
2,943
2,932 $
3,141
2,975 $
3,184
3,066 $
3,275
3,519 $
3,728
2,331 $
2,540
2,866 $
3,075
3,132 $
3,341
3,194 $
3,403
3,725 $
3,934
3,799 $
4,008
3,608 $
3,817
2,867 $
3,076
2,687 $
2,896

2020
Single
Double
1,808 $
2,022
NA
NA
2,006 $
2,220
2,270 $
2,484
2,441 $
2,655
2,802 $
3,016
3,005 $
3,219
3,049 $
3,263
3,143 $
3,357
3,607 $
3,821
2,389 $
2,603
2,938 $
3,152
3,210 $
3,424
3,274 $
3,488
3,818 $
4,032
3,894 $
4,108
3,698 $
3,912
2,939 $
3,153
2,754 $
2,968

2019
Single
Double
2,655 $
2,864
NA
NA
2,948 $
3,157
3,288 $
3,497
3,532 $
3,741
4,304 $
4,513
4,728 $
4,937
4,860 $
5,069
5,127 $
5,336
6,022 $
6,231
3,492 $
3,701
4,698 $
4,907
5,341 $
5,550
5,403 $
5,612

2020

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Double
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

2020
Single
Double
2,699 $
2,913
NA
NA
2,997 $
3,211
3,343 $
3,557
3,592 $
3,806
4,372 $
4,586
4,770 $
4,984
4,934 $
5,148
5,204 $
5,418
6,110 $
6,324
3,550 $
3,764
4,770 $
4,984
5,419 $
5,633
5,483 $
5,697

StoneRidge Retirement Living
Pro Forma Income Statement
FYE 12/31/21

Patient/Guest Service Revenue:
Room & Board, Ancillary Revenue
Entrance Fee Amortization
Contractual Allowances - MA & MC
Contractual Allowances - Lifecare
Contractual Allowances - Benevolent
Net Patient/Guest Service Revenue

$35,145,792
720,000
(6,248,393)
(121,684)
29,495,715

Other Income
Rental & Miscellaneous income

257,270

Total Operating Revenue

29,752,985

Expenses
Salaries & Wages
Employee Benefits
Supplies/Purchases
Utilities
Food Purchases
Maintenance & Repairs
Fees & Purchased Services
Depreciation & Amortization
Annuity Payments
Real Estate taxes
Insurance
Interest Expense
Administrative & Personnel
SRLC Management Services
Corporate Expense Allocation
Total Operating Expenses
Income(Loss) from Operations
Non-operating Revenue
Net Revenue over Expenses

11,914,326
2,616,936
1,336,273
693,575
1,106,947
671,425
3,295,143
2,320,086
1,750
388,770
301,045
770,674
876,118
3,195,021
29,488,089
264,896
127,500
$392,396

StoneRidge Retirement Living
Attachment 5
Statement of Material Differences
For the Year Ended 12/31/20

2020 actual net profit was higher than pro forma net income by $2,503,060.
The primary items which generated this difference are shown below.
Net resident and patient service revenue lower due to decreased census
Unrealized Gain on investments (comprehensive)
Investment and Contribution Income
Savings in operating expenses

(958,423)
1,717,408
1,002,143
741,932

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING
COMMUNITIES, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial and Compliance Report
December 31, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Board of Trustees
StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Myerstown, Pennsylvania
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries (collectively, Organization), which comprise the consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements (collectively, financial statements).
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entities’
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entities’ internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bridgeport, WV • Buckhannon, WV • Charleston, WV • Columbus, OH • Meadville, PA • Morgantown, WV • New Castle, PA • Pittsburgh, PA

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of their operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 28, 2021,
on our consideration of StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.
New Castle, Pennsylvania
May 28, 2021
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2020 and 2019
ASSETS

2019

2020

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, residents
Entrance fees receivable
Other receivables
Due from third-party payors, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$

7,154,482
7,457,253
438,828
191,335
433,261
467,981
744,159

$

5,985,729
4,926,346
510,600
713,001
743,255
137,143
628,973

16,887,299

13,645,047

34,001,732

26,365,315

5,040,991

5,078,431

29,831

31,800

1,455,375

1,180,299

45,344,083

44,097,514

SPLIT INTEREST AGREEMENTS

2,078,663

1,881,437

INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF FOREVER CARING FUND

5,315,148

4,284,953

40,770

41,984

Total current assets
INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENTS, restricted

RESIDENT FUNDS

STATUTORY MINIMUM LIQUID RESERVE

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

OTHER ASSETS
Total assets

$ 110,193,892
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$

96,606,780

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2019

2020

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Entrance fees payable
Accrued expenses
Medicare advance payments
Deferred grant revenue

$

687,882
1,493,730
944,859
2,994,309
782,680
2,625,536

$

647,909
1,208,133
1,111,396
3,156,470
-

9,528,996

6,123,908

17,148,864

17,804,460

478,900

-

29,831

31,800

691,085

829,537

DEFERRED ENTRANCE FEES

5,542,062

5,763,816

REFUNDABLE ENTRANCE FEES

2,239,333

2,537,307

392,073

404,091

5,206

6,173

36,056,350

33,501,092

67,017,888
7,119,654

56,145,820
6,959,868

74,137,542

63,105,688

Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT, net
PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN
RESIDENT FUNDS
SECURITY DEPOSITS

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS
CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITIES
Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

$ 110,193,892
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$

96,606,780

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
2019

2020
OPERATING REVENUE
Net resident service revenue, including amortization
of entrance fees 2020 $1,163,372; 2019 $942,377
Other income

$

Total operating revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Purchased services and other fees
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Supplies and purchases
Food
Administration
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Interest
Insurance costs
Real estate taxes
Marketing and advertising
Annuity payments
Amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

41,656,486
270,965

$

41,927,451

42,810,404

19,263,761
7,324,435
4,855,763
2,913,576
1,808,124
1,679,951
1,091,469
1,041,888
1,022,525
610,366
490,108
418,959
305,361
1,562
1,214

17,907,806
7,898,269
4,548,583
2,777,892
1,412,610
1,862,793
1,140,727
1,125,975
1,140,068
753,066
374,775
372,986
336,443
1,689
1,214

42,829,062

41,654,896
1,155,508

(901,611)

NON-OPERATING INCOME
Investment income
Change in value of annuity
Grant revenue, Provider Relief Funds
Contributions
Unrealized gain on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements
Total non-operating income
Excess of revenue and non-operating income
over expenses
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$

42,468,241
342,163

1,153,095
967
709,250
277,956
2,698,616
12,018

926,255
288
425,107
2,192,389
18,910

4,851,902

3,562,949

3,950,291

$

4,718,457

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
2019

2020
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Excess of revenue and non-operating income over expenses
Contribution of CCRC through affiliation agreement
Change in Forever Caring Fund

$

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Investment income on endowment fund
Realized/unrealized gain (loss) on endowment fund
Contribution of perpetual trust through affiliation agreement
Change in value of perpetual trusts
Change in value of charitable remainder trust assets
Change in net assets with donor restrictions
Change in net assets
Net assets:
Beginning
$
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$

4,718,457
677,694
5,396,151

10,872,068

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Ending

3,950,291
5,891,582
1,030,195

104,098
(141,538)
46,893
84,669
65,664

163,937
414,423
196,629
53,335

159,786

828,324

11,031,854

6,224,475

63,105,688

56,881,213

74,137,542

$

63,105,688

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019
2019

2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Amortization of bond issue costs
Contribution of CCRC through affiliation agreement, unrestricted
Contribution of CCRC through affiliation agreement, restricted
Change in value of derivative financial instruments
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
Valuation gain, beneficial interest in perpetual and
charitable remainder trusts
Change in beneficial interest in Forever Caring Fund
Change in value of charitable gift annuities
Amortization of entrance fees
Proceeds from entrance fees
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable, residents
Entrance fees receivable
Other receivables
Due from third-party payors, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Security deposits

$

11,031,854

$

6,224,475

2,913,576
1,214
31,947
(5,891,582)
(46,893)
(12,018)
(2,809,270)

2,777,892
1,214
31,947
(18,910)
(2,645,117)

(150,333)
(1,030,195)
467
(1,163,372)
1,017,550

(249,964)
(677,694)
1,401
(942,377)
1,804,200

(1,900,023)
71,772
521,666
309,994
(330,838)
(73,986)

(217,627)
(257,134)
(517,700)
5,367
(64,011)
57,690

252,918
(1,546,691)
(155,699)

(257,050)
152,184
57,974

1,042,058

5,266,760

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Net purchases of investments

(1,781,765)
(550,825)

(2,200,717)
(1,572,662)

Net cash (used in) investing activities

(2,332,590)

(3,773,379)

(647,570)
830,200
215,505
782,615
2,421,206
(866,161)
(1,434)

(606,880)
(767,051)
(1,689)

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment on long-term debt
Cash received through contribution of CCRC
Statutory minimum liquid reserve received through contribution of CCRC
Proceeds from Medicare advanced funds
Proceeds from Provider Relief Funds
Refunds of entrance fees
Payment on charitable gift annuities
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
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2,734,361

(1,375,620)

2019

2020
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash

$

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash:
Beginning

1,443,829

$

7,048,267

7,166,028

Ending

117,761

$

8,609,857

$

7,166,028

$

7,154,482
1,455,375

$

5,985,729
1,180,299

$

8,609,857

$

7,166,028

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Interest paid

$

760,085

$

828,224

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of equipment through debt obligations

$

-

$

89,438

$

830,200
630,884
41,200
4,238,882
215,505
2,378,380
46,893
8,381,944

$

-

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash include:
Cash and cash equivalents
Statutory minimum liquid reserve

Contribution of property and equipment through CCRC
affiliation agreement
Assets assumed:
Cash
Accounts receivable, residents
Prepaid expenses
Investments
Statutory minimum liquid reserve
Property and equipment, net
Split interest agreements

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred grant revenue / Medicare advance funds
Security deposits
Deferred entrance fees
Refundable entrance fee
Paycheck Protection Program loan

Total contribution of CCRC through affiliation
agreement
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-

32,679
1,384,530
204,395
17,247
218,318
107,400
478,900
2,443,469

$

5,938,475

$

-

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1.

Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of StoneRidge
Retirement Living Communities, Inc. (SRLC), StoneRidge Retirement Living (SRL), StoneRidge Family
Medicine, Inc. (SFM), Church of God Home, Inc. (COGH), The Orchards at Marsh Run (OMR),
Countryside Christian Community (CCC), and Schoolyard Square (SYS). Collectively, the consolidated
entities represent the accounts of StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(collectively, Organization).
StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. is a not-for-profit Pennsylvania corporation. SRLC is the
sole member of StoneRidge Retirement Living, StoneRidge Family Medicine, Inc., Church of God
Home, Inc., The Orchards at Marsh Run, Countryside Christian Community, and Schoolyard Square.
StoneRidge Retirement Living is a two-campus Continuing Care Retirement Community (CCRC)
providing services to the elderly located in Myerstown, Pennsylvania. SRL extends its accommodations
to persons regardless of race, color, creed, ancestry, age, religion, sex, national origin, handicap, or
disability who consent to the policies of the Organization. The Towne Centre campus consists of
152 skilled nursing beds. The Poplar Run campus consists of 60 skilled nursing care beds, 36 personal
care beds, 113 apartments, and 29 cottages.
StoneRidge Family Medicine, Inc. provided medical services to residents of Myerstown and the
surrounding communities, including many of the residents of StoneRidge Retirement Living. SFM
suspended operations during 2011. The Organization did not separately disclose the discontinued
operations of StoneRidge Family Medicine, Inc. as their operations were not material to the consolidated
financial statements and remaining assets transferred to SRLC and SRL during 2016. This company will
be kept open as a shell company for any future endeavors.
Church of God Home, Inc. and The Orchards at Marsh Run (collectively referred to as the COGH Entities)
are the sole members of SRLC through a partner in ministry affiliation agreement between StoneRidge
Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and the Eastern Regional Conference of the Churches of God.
Church of God Home, Inc., located in Carlisle, Pennsylvania, is a nonprofit CCRC. COGH provides
housing, health care, and other related services to residents through the operation of a retirement facility
containing 109 skilled nursing care beds, 37 personal care beds, and 46 apartments.
The Orchards at Marsh Run is a nonprofit corporation organized for the purpose of establishing a CCRC.
OMR desires to provide housing, health care, and other related services to residents through the
construction and operation of a retirement facility consisting of residential housing and long-term health
care services.
Countryside Christian Community is a nonprofit CCRC located in Annville, Pennsylvania, and provides
housing, health care, and other services to residents, through the operation of a 33-bed nursing facility,
20-unit personal care facility, and 23 independent living cottages. SRLC is the sole member of CCC
through a partner in ministry affiliation agreement between StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. and the United Christian Church (UCC). During 2020, both nursing and personal care
portions of the CCRC were shut down to prepare for demolition and rebuilding of a new CCRC.
Schoolyard Square is a nonprofit personal care facility located in Pine Grove, Pennsylvania. SYS
provides housing, health care, and other related services to residents through the operation of a 65 unit
personal care facility.
A summary of the Organization’s significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the
accompanying consolidated financial statements is as follows:
Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include all organizations outlined
above. Significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of accounting: The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on
the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAP), whereby revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when incurred.
Use of estimates: The preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Estimates also affect the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
Cash and cash equivalents and deposit risk: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid
investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less, excluding amounts classified as
investments or assets whose use is limited. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit
accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The accounts are guaranteed by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to certain limits. The Organization has not experienced
any losses in such accounts.
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are reconciled on the consolidated statements of cash
flows. As a matter of policy, the Organization does not consider investments that are temporarily in cash
and cash equivalents to be subject to this disclosure.
Resident funds: The Organization is entrusted with certain personal funds of its residents, the handling
of which is governed by Medicare and Medical Assistance regulations. These funds are accounted for as
trust funds and are maintained separate from other funds and are available to residents on demand and
are distributed only at the direction of the resident, their legal power of attorney, or guardian.
Accounts receivable, residents: Accounts receivable, residents are reported at estimated net
realizable value taking into account implicit and explicit price concessions. The estimated implicit price
concessions are based upon management’s judgmental assessment of historical and expected net
collections considering business and general economic conditions in its service area, trends in health
care coverage, and other collection indicators on a claim-by-claim basis. For receivables associated with
services provided to residents who have third-party coverage (which includes residents with deductible
and payment balances for which third-party coverage exists for part of the bill), the Organization analyzes
contractually due amounts and provides an explicit price concession. Throughout the year, management
assesses the adequacy of the price concessions based upon its review of accounts receivable payor
composition and aging, taking into consideration recent experience by payor category, payor agreement
rate changes, and other factors. The results of these assessments are used to make modifications to
resident service revenue and to establish an appropriate estimate for price concessions. The
Organization follows established guidelines for placing certain past-due balances with external collection
agencies. Estimated implicit price concessions of $745,669 and $518,342 as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively, have been recorded as reductions to resident accounts receivable.
Entrance fees receivable: Entrance fees receivable include amounts due from residents residing in the
independent living units who, based on contractual agreements, have been permitted an extended period
of time to deposit their entrance fees.
Inventory: Inventory, consisting primarily of dietary, maintenance, and nursing supplies, is valued at the
lower of cost (using the first-in, first-out method of accounting) or net realizable value. Net realizable
value is the value of an asset that can be realized upon the sale of the asset, less a reasonable estimate
of the costs associated with either the eventual sale or the disposal of the asset in question.
Property and equipment: Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost, and donated
assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation of property and equipment is
provided for using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred. Betterments and renewals are
capitalized. When property and equipment are sold or otherwise disposed of, the asset accounts and
related accumulated depreciation accounts are relieved, and any gain or loss is included in operations.
Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support,
unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets
with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions
are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
Investments and investment risk: Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values
and all investments in debt securities are measured at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets. The
fair value of substantially all securities are determined by quoted market prices, with the exception of
alternative investments, which are not readily marketable and are presented at net asset value (NAV) per
share, and the investment in the captive insurance program, accounted for based on cost plus or minus
observable price changes less impairment. The cost value of the captive insurance programs were
$155,662 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. Investment income or loss (including realized gains and
losses on investments, interest, dividends, and capital gains distributions) is included in excess of
revenue and non-operating income over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law.
The Organization considers its investments to be available-for-sale; accordingly, in accordance with
guidance, all unrealized gains and losses related to equity and mutual funds are included in excess of
revenue and non-operating income over expenses and any unrealized gains and losses associated with
fixed income funds would be included in other changes in net assets without donor restrictions on the
consolidated statements of operations.
All non-equity available-for-sale securities are reviewed each reporting period to determine whether a
significant event or change in circumstances has occurred that may have an adverse effect on the fair
value of each investment. When such events or changes occur, the Organization evaluates the fair value
compared to the cost of the investment. The fair values of most of the Organization’s investments in
publicly traded companies are readily available based on quoted market prices. In the event the fair
value of an investment declines below the cost, management is required to determine if the decline in fair
value is other than temporary. If management determines the decline is other than temporary, an
impairment charge is recorded. Management's assessment as to the nature of a decline in fair value is
based on, among other things, the length of time and the extent to which the market value has been less
than the cost; the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer; and the intent and ability to
retain the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.
Management believes that any fixed income investments currently being held with market values less
than cost are not significant in nature and management believes that they have the ability and intent to
hold these funds until maturity.
The Organization’s investments are comprised of a variety of financial instruments and are managed by
investment advisors. The fair values reported on the consolidated balance sheets are subject to various
risks including changes in the equity markets, the interest rate environment, and general economic
conditions. Due to the level of risk associated with investment securities and the level of uncertainty
related to changes in the fair value of investment securities, it is reasonably possible that the amounts
reported on the consolidated balance sheets could change materially in the near term.
Split-interest agreements: The Organization has received as contributions various types of split-interest
agreements, including charitable gift annuities, a charitable remainder trust, and perpetual trusts.
Charitable gift annuities: The Organization has entered into gift-annuity agreements with certain
individuals to provide periodic payments to these individuals during the remainder of their lives in return
for a charitable gift to the Organization. Under the charitable gift annuity arrangements, the Organization
has recorded the assets at fair value and the liabilities to the donor or their beneficiaries at the present
value of the estimated future payments to be distributed by the Organization to such individuals. The
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

obligation to make payments terminates only upon the donor’s death. Any change in the obligation is
recorded on the consolidated statements of operations as a change in value of charitable gift annuities.
Charitable remainder trust: The Organization is the beneficiary of a charitable remainder trust held by a
third party. Under the charitable remainder trust, a donor made an unrestricted initial gift to a trust in
which the Organization is the sole beneficiary. The terms of the trust agreement provide for a named
beneficiary to receive annuity payments for the remainder of their life. Upon the death of the named
beneficiary, the remaining assets are transferred with no restrictions to the Organization.
Perpetual trust agreements: Under the terms of the perpetual trusts, the Organization has an
irrevocable right to receive its share of the income earned on the trusts, but never receives the assets
held in trust and thus they are classified as net assets with donor restrictions. The assets of these trusts
have been recorded at their fair value in the consolidated financial statements. Distributions received are
reported as contributions on the consolidated statements of operations.
Income earned on the trust assets and distributed to the Organization is recorded as investment income
on the consolidated statements of operations, unless otherwise restricted by the donor. Subsequent
changes in fair value are recorded as valuation gain (loss).
Interest in net assets of Forever Caring Fund: Church of God Home, Inc. reports its beneficial interest
in all of the net assets of the Forever Caring Fund of the Eastern Regional Conference of the Churches of
God (Fund), a financial interrelated organization, on its statements of financial position. The Forever
Caring Fund did not become a sole member of SRLC as part of the affiliation agreements. The annual
change in that interest is reported on the Organization’s consolidated statements of changes in net
assets. Although the Fund’s purpose is to serve residents of the Organization, its Board of Directors
operates independently from that of the Organization. The Fund is recognized as a separate 501(c)(3)
organization by the Internal Revenue Service.
Bond issuance costs: Costs related to the issuance of long-term debt have been deferred and are
amortized over the terms of the related debt using an effective interest method. Amortization was
$31,947 for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. Amortization of approximately
$32,000 is expected annually over the next five years. Bond issuance costs are netted against long-term
debt on the consolidated balance sheets. Amortization related to the bond issuance costs are included in
interest expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.
Other assets: Other assets include settlement costs incurred during the purchase of Schoolyard Square
in the amount of $48,321. Settlement costs are being amortized on a straight-line basis. Amortization
expense was $1,214 for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. Amortization is
expected to be approximately $1,200 annually over the next five years.
Interest rate swap agreements: All derivative instruments are recognized on the consolidated balance
sheets at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are recorded within the
performance indicator or in net assets, depending on whether a derivative instrument is designated as
part of a hedging transaction and, if it is, the type of hedging transaction. The Organization assesses,
whether derivative instruments are highly effective in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows
of hedged items. When hedge accounting is discontinued, any related unrealized gain or loss on the
derivative instrument is recognized. The Organization uses derivative instruments, including those not
designated as part of a hedging transaction, to manage exposure to movements in interest rates. See
Note 8 for the accounting of such transactions.
Security deposits: The Organization collects security deposits on independent living units, refundable to
residents upon re-occupancy depending on the conditions of the unit as outlined in the contract.
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred entrance fees / refundable entrance fees: Under entrance fee plans for independent living
units, the Organization received payments in advance. The Organization offers several entrance fee
contracts containing various levels and terms of refundable options.
The nonrefundable portion of entrance fees received is amortized to revenue using the straight-line
method over the estimated remaining life expectancies of the residents, which are adjusted annually. The
unamortized portion of nonrefundable entrance fees is recognized as revenue in the year that the resident
leaves the unit. The unamortized portion of nonrefundable entrance fees is classified as deferred
entrance fees on the consolidated balance sheets.
The refundable portion, or guaranteed refund component, of entrance fees received is included in
refundable entrance fees on the consolidated balance sheets.
All refunds for the refundable contracts are paid after the independent living unit is vacated and, in most
circumstances, re-occupied by a new resident. However, contract terms vary and some require refunded
amounts to be paid within one year. Refunds due within one year are included in current liabilities as
entrance fees payable. Although refunds associated with nonrefundable contracts are infrequent, the
Organization includes these amounts with deferred entrance fees on the consolidated balance sheets;
however, the Organization estimated an amount to be refunded annually based on historical experience
and has included this estimate with refundable fees. Contractual refund obligations, including guaranteed
portions of refundable contracts and nonrefundable contracts, under existing resident agreements were
approximately $4,260,000 and $4,901,000 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Services provided to the Organization residents are paid for on a “fee for service” basis and are not
included under the entrance fee plans.
Net assets: Net assets and revenue, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:
Net assets without donor restrictions are net assets available for use in general operations and not
subject to donor restrictions. All revenue not restricted by donors and donor restricted contributions
whose restrictions are met in the same period in which they are received are accounted for in net
assets without donor restrictions.
Net assets with donor restrictions result from contributions, grants, or other inflows of assets whose
use by the Organization is limited by donor or grantor imposed stipulations. Those restrictions can be
removed by the passage of time, by actions of the Organization pursuant to those stipulations, or
from other asset enhancements and diminishments subject to similar stipulations. Other donorimposed restrictions may be perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. These items include beneficial interests in perpetual trusts and restricted
endowments set up by donors to be held in perpetuity in which the Organization receives an
allocation of income during the year.
Donor-restricted gifts: The Organization reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if
they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported on the
consolidated statements of operations as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted
contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted
contributions in the consolidated financial statements.
Net resident service revenue: Net resident service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing resident care
from residents, third-party payors (including health insurers and government payors), and others for
services rendered. It includes variable consideration for retroactive revenue adjustments due to
settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Organization bills the residents and thirdparty payors several days after services are performed (usually monthly). Revenue is recognized as the
performance obligations are satisfied.
13

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Organization. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual
charges incurred. The Organization believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer
of services over the term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the
obligation. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to residents receiving services at
StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries. The Organization measures the
performance obligation from the time a resident moves in to the point when it is no longer required to
provide service to the resident, which is generally at the time a resident transfers to another location or
passes on.
The Organization has elected the practical expedient allowed under Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 606-10-32-18 and does not adjust the promised
amount of consideration from residents and third-party payors for the effects of a significant financing
component due to the Organization’s expectation that the period between the time the service is provided
to a resident and the time that the resident or a third-party payor pays for that service will be one year or
less. However, the Organization does, in rare instances, enter into payment agreements with residents
that allow payments in excess of one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to
be significant to the contract.
The Organization determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services
provided, reduced by explicit price concessions (contractual adjustments) provided to third-party payors
and discounts provided to residents, including benevolent care in accordance with the Organization’s
policy. Implicit price concessions are provided to uninsured residents. The Organization determines
explicit price concessions based on contractual agreements, its policies, and historical experience. The
Organization determines its estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical collection
experience and review of individual claims.
The Organization has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement to the
Organization at amounts different from its established rates. Explicit price concessions under third-party
reimbursement programs represent the difference between the Organization’s billings at established rates
for services and amounts reimbursed by third-party payors.
A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors follows:
Medical Assistance:

Services provided to Medical Assistance program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates per day or at rates negotiated with Medicaid
Managed Care organizations. These rates vary according to a resident
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors and
the reimbursement methodology is subject to various limitations and
adjustments.

Medicare:

Services provided to Medicare Part A beneficiaries are paid at prospectively
determined rates per day. These rates vary according to a resident-specific
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors and
the reimbursement methodology is subject to various limitations and
adjustments. Therapy services provided to Medicare Part B beneficiaries are
paid at the lesser of a published fee schedule or actual charges.

Other:

Certain agreements with commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
organization, and preferred provider organizations provide for payments using
prospectively determined rates per visit type and discounts from established
charges.
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As described above, the Medical Assistance and Medicare Part A rates are based on clinical, diagnostic,
and other factors. The determination of these rates is partially based on the Organization’s clinical
assessment of their residents. Organizations are required to clinically assess their residents at
predetermined time periods throughout the year. The documented assessments are subject to review
and adjustment by the Medical Assistance and Medicare programs.
Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, are extremely
complex and subject to varying interpretation. As a result of investigations by governmental agencies,
various health care organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged
noncompliance with those laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have resulted in organizations
entering into significant settlement agreements. Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be
subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action, including
fines, penalties, and potential exclusion from the related programs. There can be no assurance that
regulatory authorities will not challenge the Organization’s compliance with these laws and regulations,
and it is not possible to determine the impact (if any) such claims or penalties would have upon the
Organization. In addition, the contracts the Organization has with commercial payors also provide for
retroactive audit and review of claims.
Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, review, or investigations are
considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of estimated transaction price for
providing resident care. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement
with the payor, correspondence from the payor, and the Organization’s historical settlement activity,
including an assessment to ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive
adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as
adjustments become known (that is, new information becomes available), or as years are settled or are
no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations. As a result, there is at least a reasonable
possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term. Adjustments arising
from a change in the transaction price were not significant as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.
The Organization provides services to uninsured residents, and offers those uninsured residents a
discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. Residents who are covered by third-party payors
are responsible for related deductibles and coinsurance. The Organization estimates the transaction
price for residents with deductibles and coinsurance and from those who are uninsured based on
historical experience and current market conditions. Subsequent changes that are determined to be the
result of an adverse change in a resident’s ability to pay are recorded as bad debt expense. Bad debt
expense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, was not considered material.
From time to time services may be provided without charge, or at amounts less then established rates, to
residents who meet certain needs based criteria based on the Organization’s benevolent care policy.
Therefore, the Organization has provided implicit price concessions to qualified residents for uninsured
private pay balances. The implicit price concessions included in estimating the transaction price
represents the difference between amounts billed to residents and the amounts the Organization expects
to collect based on its collection history with those residents. Such amounts determined to qualify as
charity are not reported as revenue. Eligibility requirements are based on an income scale. Costs
associated with providing charity care to its personal care residents were approximately $3,679,000 and
$3,652,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. The costs are determined by
multiplying the charges foregone by the related cost to charge ratio. The Organization received $124,018
and $118,176 during the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, to offset the costs of
providing charity care.
The Organization has determined that the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows are primarily affected by the payor and service line. Because all of the Organization’s revenue
originates in the same general geographic area, it was not considered to be a factor.
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The composition of resident care revenue by primary payor by service line for the years ended
December 31 is as follows:
2019

2020
Skilled Nursing Care Revenue:
Medicare
Medicaid
Private and other

$

Total skilled nursing care revenue
Personal Care Revenue (Private)
Independent Living Revenue (Private)
$

Total resident service revenue

7,200,357
11,217,317
12,378,756

$

7,758,292
10,626,182
13,022,786

30,796,430

31,407,260

4,142,086
6,717,970

4,575,080
6,485,901

41,656,486

$

42,468,241

All of the Organization’s revenue is recognized from goods and services that transfer to the resident over
time as outlined on the consolidated statements of operations.
Nursing Home Assessment: As a general nursing facility participating in Pennsylvania’s Medicaid
system, the Organization is subject to Pennsylvania’s Nursing Home Assessment Program (Program).
Under the Program, nursing facilities are assessed a “tax” based on census information and receive a
corresponding “supplemental payment” based on census information. The calculation for the “tax” is not
the same as the calculation for the “supplemental payment” and the related expenses and revenue are
not the same. The Organization has elected to record the net effect of the “tax” and “supplemental
payment” in net resident service revenue on the consolidated statements of operations.
Excess of revenue and non-operating income over expenses: The consolidated statements of
operations include excess of revenue and non-operating income over expenses. Transactions deemed
by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of health care services are reported as
operating revenue and expenses. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as non-operating
income. Items excluded from excess of revenue and non-operating income over expenses, consistent
with industry practice, include changes in the Forever Caring Fund and contribution of CCRC through
affiliation agreement.
Functional allocation of expenses: The costs of health care and supporting services activities have
been summarized on a functional basis in Note 17. The consolidated tables of functional expenses
present the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated between the program and administrative and general services.
Advertising: The Organization follows the policy of charging advertising costs to expense as incurred.
Advertising expense amounted to approximately $305,000 and 336,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Income taxes: All of the Organization’s entities are not-for-profit organizations, except StoneRidge
Family Medicine, Inc., as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (Code), and have
been recognized as tax-exempt under Section 501(a) of the Code. StoneRidge Family Medicine, Inc. is
currently applying for tax-exempt status as it intends to remain an active shell corporation for future
endeavors. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been provided.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the Organization to
evaluate tax positions taken by the Organization and recognize a tax liability or asset if the Organization
has taken an uncertain position that more likely than not would be sustained upon examination by the
Internal Revenue Services (IRS). The Organization has concluded that as of December 31, 2020 and
2019, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition of a
liability or asset or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
Generally, tax returns for years ended December 31, 2017, and thereafter remain subject to examination
by federal and state tax authorities.
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Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2019 consolidated financial
statements to conform to the current year presentation.
Subsequent events: In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organization evaluated
events that occurred through May 28, 2021, the date the consolidated financial statements were issued,
for potential recognition or disclosure.
Note 2.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Credit Losses: In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-13, (Topic
326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which significantly changes the way
entities recognize impairment of many financial assets by requiring immediate recognition of estimated
credit losses expected to occur over their remaining life. This guidance is effective for the Organization’s
fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. The Organization is currently evaluating the impact, if any, that
adoption will have on its consolidated financial statements.
Fair Value Measurement: In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement
(Topic 820): Disclosure Framework - Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value
Measurement. The amendments in this Update modify the disclosure requirements on fair value
measurements in Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, based on the concepts in the Concepts
Statement, including the consideration of costs and benefits. In addition, the amendments eliminate at a
minimum from the phrase an entity shall disclose at a minimum to promote the appropriate exercise of
discretion by entities when considering fair value measurement disclosures and to clarify that materiality
is an appropriate consideration of entities and their auditors when evaluating disclosure requirements.
The amendments on changes in unrealized gains and losses, the range and weighted average of
significant unobservable inputs used to develop Level III fair value measurements, and the narrative
description of measurement uncertainty should be applied prospectively for only the most recent interim
or annual period presented in the initial fiscal year of adoption. All other amendments should be applied
retrospectively to all periods presented upon their effective date. Early adoption is permitted. An entity is
permitted to early adopt any removed or modified disclosures upon issuance of this Update and delay
adoption of the additional disclosures until their effective date. The Organization adopted this guidance
for the year ended December 31, 2020. Adoption of this guidance did not have a significant impact on
the Organization’s December 31, 2020, consolidated financial statements.
Note 3.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its residents, many of whom are insured under thirdparty payor agreements primarily with Medicare, Medical Assistance, and various commercial companies.
The mix of receivables from residents and third-party payors as of December 31 is as follows:

2019

2020
Private pay
Medicare
Medicaid
Other

17

43 %
32
24
1

36 %
37
26
1

100 %

100 %
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Note 4.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are as follows as of December 31:

2019

2020
Land and land improvements
Building and building improvements
Equipment and furniture
Vehicles
Construction in progress

$

6,211,717
69,306,279
12,887,869
1,305,359
1,566,816
91,278,040
45,933,957

$

5,227,159
63,791,405
11,273,399
1,108,690
1,364,712
82,765,365
38,667,851

$

45,344,083

$

44,097,514

Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Construction in progress consists of costs associated with various renovations projects. The Organization
did not have any capitalized interest during the years ended December 31, 2020 or 2019.
Note 5.

Investments and Split Interest Agreements

The following represents the breakdown of investments and split interest agreements as of December 31:
2019

2020
Investments:
Unrestricted
Restricted

$

34,001,732
5,040,991

$

26,365,315
5,078,431

Total

$

39,042,723

$

31,443,746

Statutory minimum liquid reserve

$

1,455,375

$

1,180,299

Split interest agreements:
Perpetual trusts
Charitable remainder trust

$

1,627,774
450,889

$

1,496,212
385,225

$

2,078,663

$

1,881,437

Total

Note 6.

Investment Return

Investment income not subject to donor restrictions is comprised of the following for the years ended
December 31:
2019

2020
Investment income:
Interest, dividends, and capital gain distributions,
net of bank fees
Net realized gain on sales of investments
Net unrealized gain on investments
Total

18

$

900,903
252,192
2,698,616

$

887,950
38,305
2,192,389

$

3,851,711

$

3,118,644
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Investment income (loss) associated with donor restricted assets is comprised of the following for the
years ended December 31:
2019

2020
Investment income (loss):
Interest, dividends, and capital gain distributions,
Net realized gain on sales of investments
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investments
Total

Note 7.

$

104,098
3,960
(145,498)

$

163,937
1,100
413,323

$

(37,440)

$

578,360

Long-Term Debt

StoneRidge Retirement Living has a $1,000,000 working capital line of credit with PNC Bank. There were
no draws against the line of credit as of December 31, 2020 or 2019. Interest is calculated at the bank’s
prime rate, which was 3.25% as of December 31, 2020. The line of credit is collateralized by all assets of
the Organization. The line of credit expires July 30, 2021.
The amount available under the line of credit for StoneRidge Retirement Living is reduced by a $9,415
letter of credit expiring October 11, 2021, and a $402,350 letter of credit expiring October 28, 2021.
These letters of credit are required for the construction project described in Note 4 and Captive Insurance
program.
Church of God Home, Inc. has a $1,550,000 working capital line of credit with PNC Bank which expires
on July 30, 2021. There were no draws against the line of credit as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.
Interest is calculated at the bank’s prime rate, which was 3.25% as of December 31, 2020. The line of
credit is collateralized by all assets of the Organization.
The amount available under the line of credit for Church of God Home, Inc. is reduced by an $800,000
letter of credit supporting self-insurance expiring July 11, 2021.
Long-term debt consists of the following as of December 31:
2019

2020
Lebanon County Health Facilities Authority Revenue
Bonds (Series of 2000) variable rate demand bonds (3.01%
as of December 31, 2020), maturing through 2025

$

3,780,000

$

4,410,000

Jackson Township Industrial Development Authority (Series
of 2012) variable rate revenue bonds (1.36% as of
December 31, 2020), maturing through 2042

14,350,000

14,350,000

Financing agreement for purchase of equipment, payable in
monthly installments of $1,490 at 0.00% interest through
February 2024

54,988

72,558

18,184,988
348,242
687,882

18,832,558
380,189
647,909

Less bond issuance costs, net
Less current portion
$

17,148,864

$

17,804,460

Collateral for the Series 2000 and 2012 Bonds includes an open-end mortgage and security interest in
the facilities of SRL.
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The Series 2000 Bonds are also backed by a letter of credit and subject to a remarketing agreement. In
the event that any or all of the Bonds are tendered by the bondholder and are unable to be remarketed,
the letter of credit would be drawn upon to repay the tendered Bonds. Any drawings under the letter of
credit are repayable on or before the first to occur of the following: the first business day of the first
calendar month following the calendar month in which said amount is so drawn, the date on which the
Bonds purchased with the proceeds of such liquidity drawing are remarketed by the remarketing agent
and the proceeds thereof delivered to the Bond Trustee, the date on which the Bonds purchased with the
proceeds of such liquidity drawing are redeemed or otherwise paid in full, or the stated expiration date.
The letter of credit for the Series 2000 Bonds will expire April 20, 2022.
The Series 2012 Bonds are also backed by a letter of credit and subject to a remarketing agreement. In
the event that any or all of the Bonds are tendered by the bondholder and are unable to be remarketed,
the letter of credit would be drawn upon to repay the tendered Bonds. Any drawings under the letter of
credit are repayable on or before the first to occur of the following: the first business day of the first
calendar month following the calendar month in which such draw is honored, the date on which the Bonds
purchased or funded with the proceeds of such tender draft are remarketed by the remarketing agent and
the proceeds thereof delivered to the Bond Trustee, the date on which the Bonds purchased or funded
with the proceeds of such tender draft are redeemed or otherwise paid in full, or the date the liquidity
period terminates. The letter of credit for the Series 2012 Bonds will expire April 20, 2022.
The Organization is required to comply with certain financial covenants for the term of the Series 2000
and Series 2012 Bonds. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Organization believes
they were in compliance with the covenants.
Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt as of December 31, 2020, are as follows:
Years Ending December 31:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
Thereafter

Note 8.

$

687,882
727,882
768,224
801,000
850,000
14,350,000

$

18,184,988

Interest Rate Swap Agreements

The Organization entered into an interest rate swap and a basis rate swap with Wells Fargo Bank on the
Series 2000 Bonds for the entire amount of the bond issue. The interest rate swap agreements, which
are considered derivative financial instruments, were to hedge its variable interest rate payments. In
February 2002, StoneRidge Retirement Living entered into an interest rate swap agreement on the
$11,000,000 notional amount of Series 2000 bonds offering a fixed rate of 4.1% which became effective
in February 2002 and terminates in October 2025. In February 2005, StoneRidge Retirement Living
entered into a base rate swap agreement to reduce interest rate risk by swapping the USD-BMA
Municipal Swap Index variable rate to 64% of USD LIBOR-BBA plus a 0.5% spread. This basis rate
swap became effective in February 2005 and terminates in October 2025.
The swap agreements are a contract to exchange fixed rate payments for variable rate payments over the
term of the swap agreement without the exchange of the underlying notional amounts. The notional
amounts of the swap agreements are used to measure the interest to be paid or received and do not
represent the amount of exposure to credit loss. Exposure to credit loss is limited to the receivable, if
any, which may be generated as a result of the swap agreements. Management believes losses related
to credit risk are remote. The net cash paid or received under the swap agreements is recognized as an
adjustment to interest expense. The Organization does not utilize interest rate swap agreements or other
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financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes.
According to the terms of both agreements, if the variable rate is more than the fixed rate, SRL must
make a monthly payment to the counterparty. Conversely, if the variable rate is less than the fixed rates,
SRL receives a monthly payment from the counterparty to the agreement. The monthly payments are
calculated by multiplying the notional amount by the difference between the variable rates and the fixed
rate. The payments to or from the counterparty to the agreements are classified as a component of
interest expense on the consolidated statements of operations.
The hedge agreement is not accounted for using hedge accounting and, accordingly, the change in the
fair value of the interest rate swap agreements is included in excess of revenue and non-operating
income over expenses on the consolidated statements of operations.
The change in fair value is classified as change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements on the
consolidated statements of operations and was $12,018 and $18,910 for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. The corresponding liability is recorded as interest rate swap agreements on
the consolidated balance sheets.
Interest rate swap agreements in effect on the Lebanon County Revenue Bonds as of December 31
consisted of the following:
2019

2020
Notional amount
Fair value
Fixed rate
Variable rate
Maturity date

Note 9.

$
$

3,780,000
(392,073)
4.10%
LIBOR-BBA
10/15/2025

$
$

4,410,000
(404,091)
4.10%
LIBOR-BBA
10/15/2025

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions having a temporary nature consist of the following as of December 31:
2019

2020
Charitable remainder trust, available to support future operations

$

Endowment fund, available to be used solely for benefit of the
physical and occupational therapy and rehabilitation departments
Total

450,889

$

970,205

1,074,303
$

1,525,192

385,225

$

1,355,430

Net assets with permanent restrictions consist of the following as of December 31:
2019

2020
Perpetual trust assets, the income from which is expendable to
support operations

$

Endowment fund held in perpetuity, the income from which is
available to be used solely for benefit of the physical and
occupational therapy and rehabilitation departments
Total

$

5,594,462

1,496,212

4,108,226

3,966,688
$
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$

5,604,438
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Note 10.

Retirement Plans and Deferred Compensation

The Organization maintains a 401(k) retirement plan for all hourly and salaried employees working
20 hours per week. The December 31, 2020 and 2019, contribution is allocated to each participating
employee as follows: 100% on the first 3% and 50% on the next 2%. The total amount of retirement plan
expense recognized was $515,804 and $469,226 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, and is included in employee benefits on the consolidated statements of operations.
Note 11.

Commitments and Contingencies

Captive Insurance Program: The Organization participates in a Captive Retirement Community
Program (Program) administered by Murray Securus for Workers' Compensation, General/Professional
Liability, and Automobile Liability/Physical Damage insurance. This requires the Organization to maintain
irrevocable letters of credit to cover shortfalls in collected premiums. The Organization has a letter of
credit in the amount of $402,350, expiring October 28, 2021, and a $19,642 letter of credit expiring
October 31, 2021.
Insurance is reinsured and fronted by the Great American Insurance Group through CARE, Ltd., an
incorporated Bermuda domiciled Reinsurance Company. CARE, Ltd. is an insurance company which is
owned by the member insured retirement communities. Great American Insurance Group cedes
reinsurance premiums, administrative expenses, and claims expenses to CARE, Ltd., which is subject to
risk on a 100% quota share. CARE, Ltd.’s exposure is limited to an aggregate equal to 92.2% of the
annual program premium. In addition, a specific stop-loss of $500,000 per occurrence is in place for any
workers’ compensation, general/professional liability, or automobile liability/physical damage occurrence.
The Organization accounts for its investment in the Program based on the cost method of accounting.
The value of the Captive investment included with investments on the consolidated balance sheets was
$100,000 as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.
Self-Funded Health Insurance: The Organization moved to a self-funded health insurance plan with a
third-party administrator. The Organization purchased stop loss insurance, which is designed to limit the
employer’s loss in a self-funded plan to a specific amount in the event of catastrophic claims or a
multitude of unanticipated claims. The Organization’s stop loss policy limits the amount of claims the
Organization would be responsible for annually to $120,000 per individual or 125% of expected aggregate
claims. The Organization accrues expenses for health insurance claims on a monthly basis, along with
expensing premiums for the stop loss insurance and administrative expenses incurred. The Organization
has recorded a liability of approximately $421,000 and $160,000 for health insurance claims as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, included in accrued expenses on the consolidated balance
sheets. The Organization began participating in the Pareto Captive program during 2017. The value of
this Captive investment included with investments on the consolidated balance sheets was $55,662 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019.
Medical Malpractice Claims Coverage: The Organization maintained professional liability coverage
through a commercial insurance carrier on a claims made basis. Management believes no incidents have
occurred or will be asserted that will exceed the insurance coverage or will have a material adverse effect
on the consolidated financial statements.
Senior Living Services Industry: The senior living services and health care industries are subject to
numerous laws, regulations, and administrative directives of federal, state, and local governments and
agencies. Compliance with these laws, regulations, and administrative directives is subject to future
government review and interpretation as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.
Government activity continues to increase with respect to investigations and allegations concerning
possible violations by health care providers of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations, which could
result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties as well as significant repayments for resident
services previously billed. The Organization is not aware of any material incidents of noncompliance;
however, the possible future financial effects of this matter on the Organization, if any, are not presently
determinable.
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Note 12.

Endowment

The Organization’s endowment consists of donor-restricted funds. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, net assets associated with endowment funds are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
Interpretation of Relevant Law: The Board of Trustees of the Organization has interpreted the relevant
Pennsylvania law as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment fund absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, the Organization classifies as net assets with donor restrictions (a) the original value of
gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction
of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The portion of
the endowment that has temporary donor restrictions is also classified as net assets with donor
restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Organization in a manner
consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by the relevant Pennsylvania law and terms of the
endowment. The Organization considers the following factors:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

The duration and preservation of the fund
The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
General economic conditions
The possible effect of inflation and deflation
The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments
Other resources of the Organization
The investment policies of the Organization

The following schedule represents the changes in endowment net assets:
Restricted
Endowment net assets (December 31, 2018)
Net investment return
Unrealized gains
Endowment net assets (December 31, 2019)

$

Net investment return
Unrealized (losses)
Endowment net assets (December 31, 2020)

104,098
$ 1,074,303

806,268
163,937
970,205

Restricted
In Perpetuity
$ 3,693,803
414,423
4,108,226
(141,538)
$ 3,966,688

Total
$ 4,500,071
163,937
414,423
5,078,431
104,098
(141,538)
$ 5,040,991

Funds with deficiencies: The fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor or the relevant state law requires the Organization to retain
as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, these deficiencies are reported as
unrestricted net assets. There were no such deficiencies reported as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.
Return objectives and risk parameters: The Organization has adopted investment and spending
policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs
supported by its endowments while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Organization must hold in
perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s). Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the
endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that allow the
Organization to fund the appropriate programs while assuming a moderate level of investment risk.
Strategies employed for achieving objectives: The Organization relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a diversified asset allocation that places a
greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent
risk constraints.
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Endowment spending policy and relation to investment objectives: The endowment gift has a very
specific purpose that requires the income to be spent to provide solely for the purchase of a building
and/or equipment related to the physical and occupational therapy and rehabilitation departments. The
Organization has not met the expenditure requirements for release of these funds from temporarily
restricted net assets. The income, which excludes unrealized gains (losses), is being accumulated as
temporarily restricted endowment income. Per the donor’s intent, unrealized gains (losses) are to be
added to the permanently restricted endowment.
Note 13.

Affiliation Agreement

On July 1, 2020, SRLC entered into a partnership in ministry affiliation agreement with Countryside
Christian Community whereby Countryside Christian Community became a controlled subsidiary of
StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. No consideration was transferred as part of this
agreement. All assets and liabilities of CCC were assumed as part of the affiliation. As of July 1, 2020,
SRLC assumed $8,381,944 of assets and $2,443,469 of liabilities resulting in a total contribution of
CCRC through affiliation agreement in the amount of $5,938,475. The unrestricted portion of the
contribution was $5,891,582. SRLC also received restricted assets of $46,893 associated with a
beneficial interest in perpetual trust. The contribution of CCRC through affiliation agreement is included
on the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year ended December 31, 2020.
Note 14.

Fair Value Measurements

Authoritative guidance regarding Fair Value Measurements establishes a framework for measuring fair
value. This guidance defines fair value, establishes a framework and hierarchy for measuring fair value,
and outlines the related disclosure requirements. The guidance indicates that a fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell an asset or transfer a liability occurs in the principal market for the
asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability based upon an exit price model. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level III measurements). The levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
Level I

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level II

Observable inputs other than Level I prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets
or liabilities.

Level III Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant
to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
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The tables below presents the balances of assets and a liability measured on a recurring basis, at fair
value, as of December 31:
December 31, 2020
Level I
Level II

Totals
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit
Equity securities:
Financial
Health care
Industrials
Technology
Materials
Consumables
Energy
Other
Mutual funds:
Large-cap
Mid-cap
International
Fixed income securities:
Corporate, treasury, and municipal bonds
Mutual funds
Other investments

$

Level III
-

$

-

$ 10,871,554
268,401

$ 10,871,554
268,401

558,540
981,800
550,419
1,747,871
300,329
670,711
74,101
3,036,295

558,540
981,800
550,419
1,747,871
300,329
670,711
74,101
3,036,295

-

-

11,798,990
207,862
902,609

11,798,990
207,862
902,609

-

-

75,550
5,805,053
1,036,976

5,805,053
-

75,550
1,036,976

-

38,887,061

37,774,535

1,112,526

-

Statutory mimimum liquid reserve:
Cash and cash equivalents

1,455,375

1,455,375

-

-

Split interest agreements:
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Charitable remainder trust

1,627,774
450,889

-

-

1,627,774
450,889

2,078,663

-

-

2,078,663

$ 42,421,099

$ 39,229,910

$ 1,112,526

$ 2,078,663

$

$

$

$

Total

Total
Total assets
Liability:
Interest rate swap agreements

392,073
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December 31, 2019
Level I
Level II

Totals
Investments:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity securities:
Financial
Health care
Industrials
Technology
Materials
Consumables
Energy
Other
Mutual funds:
Large-cap
Mid-cap
Small-cap
International
Other
Fixed income securities:
Corporate, treasury, and municipal bonds
Mutual funds
Other investments
Alternative investments *

$

Level III
-

$

-

$ 11,133,611

$ 11,133,611

679,942
1,021,992
323,469
1,341,876
271,762
631,666
129,035
595,998

679,942
1,021,992
323,469
1,341,876
271,762
631,666
129,035
595,998

-

-

8,168,358
294,606
12,966
861,494
15,510

8,168,358
294,606
12,966
861,494
15,510

-

-

69,370
4,831,602
826,161
78,666

4,831,602
-

69,370
826,161
-

-

31,288,084

30,313,887

895,531

-

Statutory minimum liquid reserve:
Cash and cash equivalents

1,180,299

1,180,299

-

-

Split interest agreements:
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Charitable remainder trust

1,496,212
385,225

-

-

1,496,212
385,225

1,881,437

-

-

1,881,437

$ 34,349,820

$ 31,494,186

$

895,531

$ 1,881,437

$

$

$

404,091

$

Total

Total
Total assets
Liability:
Interest rate swap agreements

404,091

-

-

* In accordance with Subtopic 820-10, certain investments that were measured at net asset value per
share (or its equivalent) have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2019.
The fair value amount presented in this table is intended to permit reconciliation at the fair value hierarchy
to the amount presented on the consolidated balance sheet.
Transfers Between Levels
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no significant transfers between Levels I
and II and no transfers in or out of Level III.
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Investments Measures Using NAV per Shares as Practical Expedient
The following table summarizes investments for which fair value is measured using the net asset value
per share practical expedient as of December 31. There are no participant redemption restrictions for
these investment.

Fair Value
2019
2020
$

Alternative investments

-

Unfunded
Commitments

Redemption
Frequency
if Currently
Eligible

Redeption
Notice Period

N/A

Daily

Daily

$ 78,666

The following is a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of the fair value measurements of the
Organization’s Level III assets:

Charitable
Remainder
Trust

Perpetual
Trust

Description
Balance as of December 31, 2018

$ 1,299,583

Change in value of trust assets

$

331,890

196,629

53,335

1,496,212

385,225

Contribution of perpetual trust through affiliation agreement

46,893

-

Change in value of trust assets

84,669

65,664

Balance as of December 31, 2019

Balance as of December 31, 2020

$ 1,627,774

$

450,889

The Organization has no financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring
basis.
The following methods were used by the Organization in estimating the fair values of its financial
instruments. There have been no changes in the methodologies used as of December 31, 2020 or 2019:
Cash and cash equivalents: Values are based on multiplying number of units held by $1 per unit.
Certificates of deposit: Valued at amortized cost plus accrued interest.
Equity securities (mutual funds): Valued at the closing price reported in the active market on which the
individual securities are traded for equity securities and fixed income mutual funds and quoted market
prices in active markets.
Fixed income securities (mutual funds, corporate, treasury, and municipal bonds): Values are
estimated using quoted prices for similar securities.
Alternative investments: Value of alternative investments is based on net asset value (NAV) per share.
Charitable remainder trust and perpetual trusts: Valued based on the fair value of the trusts’
underlying assets, which approximates the discounted present value of future cash flows.
Interest rate swap agreements: Value of the interest rate swap agreements is based on the net present
value of expected future cash flows of the difference between the fixed interest rate of the interest rate
swap agreements and the counterparty’s forward LIBOR curve. The forward LIBOR curve is readily
available in public markets or can be derived from information available in publicly quoted markets.
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The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Organization believes its
valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a
different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
Note 15.

Pennsylvania Department of Insurance Required Disclosures

As a continuing care provider, the Organization is required to maintain a minimum liquid reserve to be in
compliance with the Continuing Care Provider Registration and Disclosure Act (Act 82). The minimum
reserve is equal to the greater of total interest and principal payments on long-term debt due within the
next twelve months (related to the independent living units) or 10% of projected annual operating
expenses (related to the independent living units).
The following is the minimum liquid reserve calculations for SRL, COGH, and CCC as of December 31,
2020.
SRL
$

COGH

1,440,674

$
8.87%
$

478,900
45.00%
215,505

Statutory minimum liquid reserve factor
10% of projected annual operating expenses

$ 29,488,089
$ 14,219,460
$
2,320,086
567,612
27,168,003
13,651,848
41.18%
8.87%
11,187,784
1,210,919
10.00%
10.00%
$ 1,118,778
$
121,092
$

124,000
30,000
94,000
45.00%
42,300
10.00%
4,230

Statutory minimum liquid reserve (greater of above)

$

215,505

Principal and interest payments due within the next 12 months
Percent of residents subject to residence and care arrangement

$
Projected annual operating expenses
Less depreciation and amortization
Operating expenses pertaining to statutory liquid reserve
Percent of residents subject to residence and care arrangement

Total statutory minimum liquid reserve on the
consolidated balance sheet

$
41.18%
593,270
$

CCC

1,118,778

$

121,092

$

$ 1,455,375

The Organization receives deposits prior to a resident occupying a unit. These funds are deposited into
escrow accounts included with investments on the consolidated balance sheets. The Organization did
not receive any entrance fees prior to December 31, 2020, for which a resident had not yet moved in.
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Note 16.

Liquidity and Availability

The following table reflects the Organization’s financial assets available for general expenditure within the
year as of December 31, 2020.
Financial assets are considered unavailable when illiquid or not
convertible to cash within one year. Unavailable assets consist of: (a) assets whose use is limited by
regulatory bodies or (b) donor restrictions.
Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the consolidated balance sheet date
consist of the following as of December 31, 2020:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, residents
Other receivables
Investments, unrestricted

$

7,154,482
7,457,253
191,335
34,001,732

$

48,804,802

The Organization also has approximately $1,000,000 available under various lines of credit as outlined in
Note 7. Management has sufficient funds in cash and cash equivalents and unrestricted investments to
re-pay any Provider Relief Funds sitting in deferred revenue if it is determined that such funds do not
meet the criteria to be kept by the Organization.
Note 17.

Functional Expenses

The Organization’s expenses for program activities (including nursing care, personal care, independent
living, and residential services) and general and administrative expenses which consist of the following for
the years ended December 31:

Program
Services
Salaries and wages
Purchased services and other fees
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Supplies and purchases
Food
Administration
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Interest
Insurance costs
Real estate taxes
Marketing and advertising
Annuity payments
Amortization
Total

2020
Administrative
and General

Total

$

16,338,209
7,242,170
4,232,926
2,844,394
1,797,197
1,678,967
1,041,888
948,951
610,366
477,167
1,562
1,214

$

2,925,552
82,265
622,837
69,182
10,927
984
1,091,469
73,574
12,941
418,959
305,361
-

$

19,263,761
7,324,435
4,855,763
2,913,576
1,808,124
1,679,951
1,091,469
1,041,888
1,022,525
610,366
490,108
418,959
305,361
1,562
1,214

$

37,215,011

$

5,614,051

$

42,829,062
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Program
Services
Salaries and wages
Purchased services and other fees
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Supplies and purchases
Food
Administration
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Interest
Insurance costs
Real estate taxes
Marketing and advertising
Annuity payments
Amortization
Total
Note 18.

2019
Administrative
and General

Total

$

14,950,531
7,858,505
3,981,976
2,724,607
1,400,711
1,851,317
1,125,975
1,081,166
753,039
362,590
1,689
1,214

$

2,957,275
39,764
566,607
53,285
11,899
11,476
1,140,727
58,902
27
12,185
372,986
336,443
-

$

17,907,806
7,898,269
4,548,583
2,777,892
1,412,610
1,862,793
1,140,727
1,125,975
1,140,068
753,066
374,775
372,986
336,443
1,689
1,214

$

36,093,320

$

5,561,576

$

41,654,896

COVID-19 Funding

In March 2020, the World Health Organization recognized the novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, as a
pandemic. The response to the pandemic has severely impacted the level of economic activity around
the world and has had wide ranging effects on the Organization, including lost revenue, changing
workforce dynamics, decreases in census, as well as increased funding sources.
In response to the pandemic, the United States government passed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (CARES Act). The CARES Act established several programs including the
Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) and the Provider Relief Fund (PRF) to aid businesses in their
response to the economic effects of COVID-19.
The Organization accounts for this funding in accordance with the authoritative guidance for grants and
contributions and, accordingly, revenues are recognized when conditions are substantially met.
Funding received consisted of the following as of December 31, 2020:
Paycheck Protection Program Loan
CCC obtained a loan under the Paycheck Protection Program in the amount of $478,900 pursuant to the
CARES Act. The proceeds from the loan must be spent on qualifying expenses as allowed under the
CARES Act and matures two years from the date of the loan. The allowable costs under the PPP include
covered payroll costs, mortgage interest on real or personal property, rental obligations on real or
personal property, and covered utility costs. The Organization has selected the twenty-four week covered
period as allowed under the CARES Act. Management of the Organization believes it has used the loan
proceeds in accordance with the requirements of the PPP.
Subject to certain eligibility and certification requirements under the PPP, some or all of the loan amount
may be forgiven; however, the amount and timing of any forgiveness is uncertain. The Organization has
elected to account for the PPP loan as debt. As such, the amount borrowed under the PPP loan is
outstanding as of December 31, 2020. The Organization has not applied for forgiveness as of the date of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Medicare Advanced Funding
The Organization received accelerated Medicare payments of $782,680, via the Medicare Accelerated
and Advance Payment Program as of December 31, 2020, which is included on the consolidated balance
sheet. The payments received under the Medicare Accelerated and Advance Payment Program are
advances that providers must repay. The accelerated Medicare payments are interest free for up to two
years and the program currently requires that the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
recoup the accelerated payments, by withholding future Medicare fee-for-service payments for claims
until such time as the full accelerated payment has been recouped. The program currently requires that
any outstanding balance remaining after two years must be repaid by the provider or be subjected to a
4% interest rate.
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) Provider Relief Fund
In March 2020, the CARES Act was signed into law to combat the financial effects of COVID-19. The
CARES Act created a Provider Relief Fund to provide financial support for health care providers. The
Organization received $2,625,536 for the year ended December 31, 2020, related to this funding. In
accordance with the terms and conditions, the Organization can apply the funding against lost revenues
and eligible expenses. Noncompliance with the terms and conditions could result in repayment of some
or all of the support. The Department of Health and Human Services has indicated relief fund payments
are subject to future reporting and audit requirements.
Management is uncertain if they have met the criteria to consider these funds earned as of December 31,
2020. Accordingly, these funds have not been recognized into income and are included in deferred grant
revenue on the consolidated balance sheet.
Pennsylvania Act 24 Funds
During 2020, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (PA) Office of Long-Term Living, pursuant to Act 24 of
2020, awarded the Organization a grant in the amount of $709,250 to cover lost revenues and pay for
necessary expenses incurred from March 1, 2020, to November 30, 2020, to respond to the COVID-19
pandemic. The Organization has incurred lost revenues and eligible expenses, in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the grant, of $709,250 during the year ended December 31, 2020, which were
recognized and included in grant revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations.
The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the Organization’s operational and financial performance will
depend on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on the
Organization’s residents, financial markets, employees, and vendors. Given the uncertainty regarding the
spread of this coronavirus, the related financial impact on the Organization’s results of operations,
financial position, and liquidity or capital resources cannot be reasonably estimated at this time and have
not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, due to continually changing
regulatory guidance, it is possible that management’s estimated grant revenue could change in the future
by a material amount.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Board of Trustees
StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Myerstown, Pennsylvania
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and
issued our report thereon dated May 28, 2021, which expressed an unmodified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements (see pages 1 and 2). Our audits were conducted for the purpose of
forming an opinion on such consolidated financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary information is presented for the purposes of additional analyses and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of those consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

New Castle, Pennsylvania
May 28, 2021
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2020
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, residents
Entrance fees receivable
Other receivables
Due from affiliates, current portion
Due from third-party payors, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$

172,578
443,298
750,004
259,981
224,382

StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

1,664,806
5,502,895
438,828
142,587
313,318
179,415
288,116

1,850,243

8,529,965

1,052,138

25,428,704

INVESTMENTS, restricted

-

5,040,991

RESIDENT FUNDS

-

26,199

STATUTORY MINIMUM LIQUID RESERVE

-

1,118,778

792,293

33,542,310

DUE FROM AFFILIATES, net

-

3,000,000

SPLIT INTEREST AGREEMENTS

-

1,880,797

INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF FOREVER CARING FUND

-

-

OTHER ASSETS

-

-

Total current assets
INVESTMENTS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

$

Total assets

3,694,674

See Independent Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Information
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$

78,567,744

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

4,292,604
1,759,698
3,084,673
120,477
25,681
167,677

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

8,052
-

Countryside
Christian
Community

$

971,573
165,149
(534)
25,626

Schoolyard
Square

$

44,869
29,511
880
2,904
38,358

Eliminations

$

(394,550)
(3,835,557)
-

Total

$

7,154,482
7,457,253
438,828
191,335
433,261
467,981
744,159

9,450,810

8,052

1,161,814

116,522

2,625,655

-

4,895,235

-

-

34,001,732

-

-

-

-

-

5,040,991

3,632

-

-

-

-

29,831

121,092

-

215,505

-

-

1,455,375

5,093,098

1,619,455

2,380,340

1,916,587

-

45,344,083

-

-

-

-

145,931

-

51,935

-

-

2,078,663

5,315,148

-

-

-

-

5,315,148

-

-

-

40,770

-

40,770

22,755,366

$

1,627,507

$

8,704,829

$

2,073,879

(4,230,107)

(3,000,000)

$

(7,230,107)

See Independent Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Information
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16,887,299

-

$ 110,193,892

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2020
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Entrance fees payable
Accrued expenses
Medicare advance payments
Deferred grant revenue
Due to affiliates, current portion

$

117,511
1,033,992
-

StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

687,882
840,855
758,619
1,303,044
551,528
1,623,141
1,640,559

1,151,503

7,405,628

LONG-TERM DEBT, net

-

17,148,864

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN

-

-

RESIDENT FUNDS

-

26,199

SECURITY DEPOSITS

-

14,500

DEFERRED ENTRANCE FEES

-

5,218,895

REFUNDABLE ENTRANCE FEES

-

1,856,813

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

-

392,073

DUE TO AFFILIATES, net

-

-

CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITIES

-

5,206

1,151,503

32,068,178

2,543,171
-

39,577,778
6,921,788

2,543,171

46,499,566

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions
Total net assets (deficit)
$

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

3,694,674
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$

78,567,744

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

442,563
186,240
546,284
231,087
740,215
-

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

-

Countryside
Christian
Community

$

42,243
454,180
65
262,180
823,303

Schoolyard
Square

$

49,085
51,359
1,373,168

Eliminations

$

1,473
(394,550)
(3,837,030)
(4,230,107)

Total

$

687,882
1,493,730
944,859
2,994,309
782,680
2,625,536
9,528,996

2,146,389

-

1,581,971

1,473,612

-

-

-

-

-

17,148,864

-

-

478,900

-

-

478,900

3,632

-

-

-

-

29,831

652,338

7,000

17,247

-

-

691,085

121,188

-

201,979

-

-

5,542,062

275,120

-

107,400

-

-

2,239,333

-

-

-

-

-

392,073

-

-

-

3,000,000

-

-

-

-

3,198,667

7,000

2,387,497

4,473,612

19,410,768
145,931

1,620,507
-

6,265,397
51,935

(2,399,733)
-

-

67,017,888
7,119,654

19,556,699

1,620,507

6,317,332

(2,399,733)

-

74,137,542

22,755,366

$

1,627,507

$

8,704,829

$

2,073,879

(3,000,000)
(7,230,107)

$

(7,230,107)
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5,206
36,056,350

$ 110,193,892

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2020
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.
OPERATING REVENUE
Net resident service revenue, including
amortization of entrance fees $1,163,372
Management fees
Other income

$

Total operating revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Purchased services and other fees
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Supplies and purchases
Food
Administration
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Interest
Insurance costs
Real estate taxes
Marketing and advertising
Annuity payments
Amortization
Total operating expenses

4,519,863
18,226

StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

4,538,089

27,189,976

2,925,552
82,265
622,837
69,182
10,927
984
362,772
73,574
12,941
-

10,842,807
6,540,961
2,797,171
2,104,493
1,170,906
1,098,494
410,265
657,837
605,521
610,366
296,150
382,396
238,878
1,562
-

4,161,034

27,757,807

377,055

Operating income (loss)
NON-OPERATING INCOME
Investment income
Change in value of annuity
Grant revenue, Provider Relief Funds
Contributions
Unrealized gain on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements
Total non-operating income
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and non-operating
income over expenses

$

(567,831)

400
85,315
-

861,886
967
452,264
159,698
1,716,541
12,018

85,715

3,203,374

462,770
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27,026,970
163,006

$

2,635,543

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

13,302,424
51,573

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

-

Countryside
Christian
Community

$

211,418
35,218

Schoolyard
Square

$

1,115,674
2,942

Eliminations

$

(4,519,863)
-

Total

$

41,656,486
270,965

13,353,997

-

246,636

1,118,616

(4,519,863)

41,927,451

4,893,386
4,876,326
1,277,959
535,544
550,504
472,678
250,105
263,130
260,862
120,245
47,018
-

-

49,509
233,045
41,462
101,838
12,308
3,156
23,611
17,078
23,773
33,486
25,090
142
-

552,507
111,701
116,334
102,519
63,479
104,639
44,716
103,843
58,795
27,286
11,473
19,323
1,214

(4,519,863)
-

19,263,761
7,324,435
4,855,763
2,913,576
1,808,124
1,679,951
1,091,469
1,041,888
1,022,525
610,366
490,108
418,959
305,361
1,562
1,214

13,547,757

-

564,498

1,317,829

(4,519,863)

42,829,062

(193,760)

-

(317,862)

166,441
222,560
116,581
365,554
-

-

124,768
34,426
1,277
531,206
-

-

-

1,153,095
967
709,250
277,956
2,698,616
12,018

871,136

-

691,677

-

-

4,851,902

677,376

$

-

$

373,815

(199,213)

$

(199,213)

-

$
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-

(901,611)

$

3,950,291

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Year Ended December 31, 2020
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and non-operating
income over expenses
Contribution of CCRC through affiliation agreement
Change in Forever Caring Fund

$

Change in net assets (deficit) without donor
restrictions
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Investment income on endowment fund
Realized/unrealized (loss) on endowment fund
Contribution of perpetual trust through affiliation agreement
Change in value of perpetual trusts
Change in value of charitable remainder trust assets
Change in net assets with donor restrictions
Change in net assets (deficit)
Net assets (deficit):
Beginning
Ending

$

462,770

$

2,635,543

-

-

462,770

2,635,543

-

104,098
(141,538)
68,684
65,664

-

96,908

462,770

2,732,451

2,080,401

43,767,115

2,543,171
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StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

46,499,566

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

677,376

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

(199,213)

$

-

Total

$

-

3,950,291
5,891,582
1,030,195

-

10,872,068

-

1,707,571

-

6,265,397

10,943
-

-

46,893
5,042
-

-

-

104,098
(141,538)
46,893
84,669
65,664

10,943

-

51,935

-

-

159,786

1,718,514

-

6,317,332

(199,213)

-

11,031,854

17,838,185

1,620,507

(2,200,520)

-

63,105,688

1,620,507

$

Eliminations

1,030,195

$

-

Schoolyard
Square

373,815
5,891,582
-

19,556,699

$

Countryside
Christian
Community

-

(199,213)

$

6,317,332

$

(2,399,733)

$
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-

$

74,137,542

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2019
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, residents
Entrance fees receivable
Other receivables
Due from affiliates, current portion
Due from third-party payors, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$

439,200
700,987
4,543
107,103

StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

1,783,295
3,331,928
364,600
12,014
522,348
121,604
319,305

1,251,833

6,455,094

881,823

23,441,532

INVESTMENTS, restricted

-

5,078,431

RESIDENT FUNDS

-

28,047

STATUTORY MINIMUM LIQUID RESERVE

-

1,064,027

688,494

34,537,913

DUE FROM AFFILIATES, net

-

3,000,000

SPLIT INTEREST AGREEMENTS

-

1,746,449

INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF FOREVER CARING FUND

-

-

OTHER ASSETS

-

-

Total current assets
INVESTMENTS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net

$

Total assets

2,822,150
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$

75,351,493

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

3,738,781
1,593,230
146,000
2,453,065
220,907
9,274
178,154

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

8,052
-

Schoolyard
Square

$

16,401
1,188
1,722
24,411

Eliminations

$

(2,453,065)
-

Total

$

5,985,729
4,926,346
510,600
713,001
743,255
137,143
628,973

8,339,411

8,052

43,722

2,041,960

-

-

-

26,365,315

-

-

-

-

5,078,431

3,753

-

-

-

31,800

116,272

-

-

-

1,180,299

5,264,798

1,619,455

1,986,854

-

44,097,514

-

-

-

134,988

-

-

-

1,881,437

4,284,953

-

-

-

4,284,953

-

-

41,984

-

41,984

20,186,135

$

1,627,507

$

2,072,560

(2,453,065)

13,645,047

(3,000,000)

$

(5,453,065)

-

$

96,606,780
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2019
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Entrance fees payable
Accrued expenses
Due to affiliates, current portion

$

17,265
875,200
(150,716)

StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

647,909
708,891
955,956
1,694,630
1,413,768

741,749

5,421,154

LONG-TERM DEBT, net

-

17,804,460

RESIDENT FUNDS

-

28,047

SECURITY DEPOSITS

-

14,500

DEFERRED ENTRANCE FEES

-

5,637,306

REFUNDABLE ENTRANCE FEES

-

2,268,647

INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS

-

404,091

DUE TO AFFILIATES, net

-

-

CHARITABLE GIFT ANNUITIES

-

6,173

741,749

31,584,378

2,080,401
-

36,942,235
6,824,880

2,080,401

43,767,115

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions
Net assets with donor restrictions
Total net assets (deficit)
$

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

2,822,150
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$

75,351,493

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

462,411
155,440
523,139
-

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

-

Schoolyard
Square

$

19,566
63,501
1,190,013

Eliminations

$

(2,453,065)

Total

$

(2,453,065)

647,909
1,208,133
1,111,396
3,156,470
6,123,908

1,140,990

-

1,273,080

-

-

-

-

17,804,460

3,753

-

-

-

31,800

808,037

7,000

-

-

829,537

126,510

-

-

-

5,763,816

268,660

-

-

-

2,537,307

-

-

-

-

404,091

-

-

3,000,000

-

-

-

2,347,950

7,000

4,273,080

17,703,197
134,988

1,620,507
-

(2,200,520)
-

-

56,145,820
6,959,868

17,838,185

1,620,507

(2,200,520)

-

63,105,688

20,186,135

$

1,627,507

$

2,072,560

(3,000,000)

6,173

(5,453,065)

$

(5,453,065)

33,501,092

$

96,606,780

See Independent Auditor’s Report on the Supplementary Information
44

STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
Year Ended December 31, 2019
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.
OPERATING REVENUE
Net resident service revenue, including
amortization of entrance fees $942,377
Management fees
Other income

$

Total operating revenue
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Purchased services and other fees
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Supplies and purchases
Food
Administration
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Interest
Insurance costs
Real estate taxes
Marketing and advertising
Annuity payments
Amortization
Total operating expenses

4,243,417
37,701

StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

4,281,118

27,701,159

2,519,747
39,764
566,677
53,285
11,900
11,477
241,348
58,902
27
12,185
830
-

10,166,051
7,285,453
2,560,228
2,100,248
939,193
1,248,361
564,078
744,619
726,548
753,039
240,918
361,635
245,308
1,689
-

3,516,142

27,937,368

764,976

Operating income (loss)
NON-OPERATING INCOME
Investment income
Change in value of annuity
Contributions
Unrealized gain on investments
Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements
Total non-operating income
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and non-operating
income over expenses

$

(236,209)

52,471
-

917,640
288
295,666
1,814,344
18,910

52,471

3,046,848

817,447
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27,451,251
249,908

$

2,810,639

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

13,840,647
51,178

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

-

Schoolyard
Square

$

1,176,343
3,376

Eliminations

$

(4,243,417)
-

Total

$

42,468,241
342,163

13,891,825

-

1,179,719

(4,243,417)

42,810,404

4,603,063
4,692,583
1,283,774
524,699
424,730
499,002
286,745
267,991
294,822
100,317
65,874
-

-

618,945
123,886
137,904
99,660
36,787
103,953
48,556
113,365
59,796
21,355
11,351
24,431
1,214

(4,243,417)
-

17,907,806
7,898,269
4,548,583
2,777,892
1,412,610
1,862,793
1,140,727
1,125,975
1,140,068
753,066
374,775
372,986
336,443
1,689
1,214

13,043,600

-

1,401,203

(4,243,417)

41,654,896

848,225

-

8,615
129,441
325,574
-

-

463,630

-

1,311,855

$

-

(221,484)

$

-

1,155,508

-

-

926,255
288
425,107
2,192,389
18,910

-

-

3,562,949

(221,484)

$

-

$

4,718,457
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STONERIDGE RETIREMENT LIVING COMMUNITIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Year Ended December 31, 2019
StoneRidge
Retirement
Living
Communities, Inc.
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR
RESTRICTIONS
Excess (deficiency) of revenue and non-operating
income over expenses
Change in Forever Caring Fund

$

Change in net assets (deficit) without donor
restrictions
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Investment income on endowment fund
Realized/unrealized gain on endowment fund
Change in value of perpetual trusts
Change in value of charitable remainder trust assets
Change in net assets with donor restrictions
Change in net assets (deficit)
Net assets (deficit):
Beginning
Ending

$

817,447
-

$

2,810,639
-

817,447

2,810,639

-

163,937
414,423
181,729
53,335

-

813,424

817,447

3,624,063

1,262,954

40,143,052

2,080,401
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StoneRidge
Retirement
Living

$

43,767,115

Church of God
Home, Inc.

$

$

1,311,855
677,694

The Orchards
at Marsh
Run

$

-

1,989,549

-

14,900
-

-

14,900

-

2,004,449

-

15,833,736

1,620,507

17,838,185

$

1,620,507

Schoolyard
Square

$

(221,484)
-

Eliminations

$

(221,484)

$

-

Total

$

4,718,457
677,694

-

5,396,151

-

-

163,937
414,423
196,629
53,335

-

-

828,324

(221,484)

-

6,224,475

(1,979,036)

-

56,881,213

(2,200,520)

$

-

$

63,105,688
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actcpas.com
2599 Wilmington Road
New Castle, PA 16105
724.658.1565 | 724.658.2402 fax
800.452.3003

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
StoneRidge Retirement Living
Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Myerstown, Pennsylvania
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
StoneRidge Retirement Living Communities, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Organization), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 28, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the
Organization’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entities’ consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization’s consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entites’ internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entities’ internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

New Castle, Pennsylvania
May 28, 2021
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RESIDENCY AGREEMENT
StoneRidge Retirement Living, is a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to establish and operate StoneRidge Poplar Run as a
continuing care retirement community, located at 440-450 East Lincoln Avenue,
Myerstown, PA.
(Name) (referred to in this Agreement as “Resident”) has on this ____ day of (Month),
(Year), entered into this RESIDENCY AGREEMENT with StoneRidge Retirement
Living, (referred to as "StoneRidge" or "StoneRidge Retirement Living "), the terms of
which are set out below. (If two persons sign this Agreement, the word “Resident” shall
apply to them jointly and separately, as required by the context.)
I.

RESIDENTIAL LIVING SERVICES AND FACILITIES
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide Resident, who meets StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s Conditions of Occupancy, with the Residential Accommodation, common
facilities and designated services specified in this Agreement, beginning on the
Designated Occupancy Date or Occupancy, whichever is earlier.
A.

Living Accommodation

StoneRidge Retirement Living agrees that you shall have a personal and non-assignable
right to occupy a Living Accommodation in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.
B.

Furnishings

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide a refrigerator, range/oven, dishwasher,
microwave/convection oven, carpeting, blinds and a garbage disposal. Resident may
request optional furnishings or fixtures at an additional charge. Upon installation, all
additional furnishings or fixtures immediately become the property of StoneRidge
Retirement Living and shall remain in the residence after termination of the Agreement.
PRESIDENT & CEO____________

RESIDENT INITIAL ____________

C.

Common Facilities

Resident may use, in common with other members of StoneRidge, the dining room, arts
and crafts area, beauty and barber shop, lobbies, lounges, library, designated laundry
facilities, recreation room, woodshop, music room and the conference room.
D.

Storage Facilities

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide one storage unit in a designated area for
your apartment unit.
E.

Structural Changes and Redecoration

Structural or physical change or redecoration to the accommodation may be made only
with the written approval of the StoneRidge Retirement Living administrative staff. The
cost of such alterations and restoration to original condition, except that cost due to
normal wear and tear, shall be paid by the Resident.
F.

Utilities

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide, as part of the Monthly Fee, water, sewer,
heat, electricity, air conditioning, and basic TV service.
G.

Telephone

A monthly usage fee established by StoneRidge Retirement Living and any other
telephone service charges, including long distance service charges, are not included in the
Monthly Fee and shall be paid by the Resident.
H.

Maintenance and Repair Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall repair, maintain and replace equipment owned by
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
The Resident will be responsible for repairs,
maintenance and replacement of the Resident’s personal property.
I.

Grounds

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide grounds keeping, lawn care, snow removal
and trash removal from designated areas.
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J.

Dining Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living makes available a variety of dining opportunities.
Procedures for the dining services are as follows:

K.

1.

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide, as part of this contract, a
meal credit as part of the monthly fee. The details of this credit and its
availability are explained in the Resident Handbook and may change from
time to time. Resident shall choose how they desire to utilize the credit
based on the personal preference.

2.

Meal delivery service in the event of illness shall be provided at no
additional charge for an unlimited period of time; however StoneRidge
reserves the right to evaluate resident abilities on an individual basis.
Residents must provide StoneRidge Retirement Living with a physician’s
order indicating the need for sick tray service for periods longer than two
(2) days.

3.

StoneRidge Retirement Living may accommodate special diets with a
separate charge for diets requiring special preparation.

4.

Additional meal plans may be available upon request.

5.

Guest meals will be available at prevailing rates

Housekeeping

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide light housekeeping services and flat linen
laundry service on a regular basis in accordance with the policy established in the
Resident Handbook.
L.

Transportation

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide transportation, according to a predetermined schedule and route, for medical appointments within a pre-determined radius.
Scheduled transportation is also provided to local shopping centers, supermarkets and
churches. Additional transportation services are available for an additional fee.
M.

Security

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide security services, including an electronic
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entry system as described in the Resident Handbook.
N.

Parking

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide one designated parking space for each
Residence.
O.

Scope of Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to revise the services included in the
Monthly Fee and to adjust the Monthly Fee appropriately.
II.

MEDICAL AND EMERGENCY SERVICES
A.

Emergency Response System

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide each residence with a call system by which
Resident can contact StoneRidge Retirement Living personnel available to respond
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, to assess the Resident’s need. If
there is a need for additional or emergency medical assistance, StoneRidge Retirement
Living shall contact emergency or other health care providers.
While the call system may be used to inform StoneRidge Retirement Living of a medical
emergency or a security concern, StoneRidge Retirement Living disclaims any and all
responsibility for responding to medical emergencies and for any liability for any injury
or damages resulting from mechanical failure of the emergency call system.
B.

Home Health Care Services

Home Health Care Services available at StoneRidge Retirement Living on a fee-for
service basis include skilled nursing care, physical, occupational, speech, respiratory, and
enterostomal therapies, home infusion services and supplies, and social services for the
homebound. The scope and details concerning these services can be found in the Resident
Handbook. Resident has the right to secure other outside services with approval from
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
StoneRidge Retirement Living does not assume responsibility for the scope of care
provided by outside home or health care personnel. Such services are hired at the sole
discretion of Resident. Resident is required to confirm that any approved provider of
such services has worker’s compensation insurance coverage. Resident releases
StoneRidge Retirement Living from any liability for any damages or injuries caused to
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Resident, other Resident or staff, by any home or health care personnel not employed by
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
C.

Emergency Transportation

Emergency Transportation is available through annual membership with a local First Aid
Unit. It is the responsibility of the Resident to enroll in and maintain annual membership.
Further information is available in the Resident Handbook.
D.

Limitations on Care

The Health Care Center is not designed to care for persons who abuse alcohol or drugs or
who are afflicted with serious mental illness and require specialized psychiatric care or
services not authorized or permitted under the nursing or personal care licensure
regulations. If StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that Resident’s mental or
physical condition is such that Resident’s continued presence in StoneRidge Retirement
Living is either dangerous or detrimental to the life, health, safety of Resident or other
Resident, or the peaceful enjoyment of StoneRidge Retirement Living by other Resident,
StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident to an appropriate outside care
facility at Resident’s expense. StoneRidge Retirement Living’s determination shall be
made in writing and signed by the Medical Director and the Administrator of StoneRidge
Retirement Living. Resident shall continue to pay the Monthly Fee in accordance with
the terms of this agreement until termination of said agreement.
III.

NURSING CARE AND ASSISTED LIVING SERVICES
A.

Health Care Center

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall operate Assisted Living and Nursing Care facilities
in the Health Care Center which are licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall make available, for an additional charge, Assisted
Living services in private or semi-private accommodations and routine Nursing Care
Services in semi-private accommodations on a temporary or permanent basis. Resident
shall sign an admission agreement upon transfer to either the Assisted Living or Nursing
Care facilities, which agreements will supplement the terms of this Agreement.
B.

Authority To Transfer

StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident from and between the Residential
Accommodation and the Health Care Center for any of the following reasons:
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1.

StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that the Resident is
unable to satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy for the Residential
Accommodation.

2.

StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that such a move should
be made.
(a)

For the proper operation of StoneRidge

(b)

To comply with regulations of the Department of
Public Welfare, the Pennsylvania Department of
Health, regulations of the local Fire Department, or
any other duly constituted authorities or agencies;
or

(c)

To meet the requirements of law.

In the event that there is insufficient space in the Health Care Center at such time as
Resident may require assisted living or nursing care services, then StoneRidge
Retirement Living may transfer Resident to an outside facility selected by Resident or
StoneRidge Retirement Living until such time as a nursing bed or assisted living
accommodation becomes available.
If Resident’s physical or mental health has deteriorated to the degree that Resident's
presence in StoneRidge is detrimental to Resident or to the health, safety or peace of
other Resident, or if Resident is unable to meet the admission criteria for the HealthCare
Center, StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident to a hospital, or other
outside healthcare provider.
C.

Transfer Procedures

The Resident or responsible party will be consulted in advance to the extent possible.
Recommendations for relocation to the Health Care Center will be reviewed internally in
accordance with the utilization review procedures in effect at the time. Full consideration
will be given to the Resident’s or responsible party’s wishes in this process. However,
StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to make the final decision in the best
interest of the overall facility operation and the health, safety and well being of the other
Resident.
D.

Temporary or Permanent Nature of Transfer

StoneRidge Retirement Living, in accordance with its utilization review procedures, shall
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be responsible to determine whether the transfer is temporary or permanent and whether
Resident is able to satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy. StoneRidge Retirement Living’s
decision regarding the temporary or permanent nature of any transfer may be made prior
to the lapse of thirty (30) days from the date of transfer or at any other time deemed
appropriate by StoneRidge Retirement Living. If Resident’s transfer is temporary,
Resident may retain possession of the Residential Accommodation for the purpose of
resuming residency.
Resident shall continue to pay the applicable monthly fee while receiving services in the
HealthCare Center.
If Resident’s transfer is permanent, Resident’s Residential
Accommodation shall be released (if not occupied by a Co-Resident) and made available
for occupancy by another Resident. Resident and/or Resident’s responsible party shall be
notified and given thirty (30) days to remove personal possessions.
E.

Costs Related to Transfer to the Health Care Center or Other Health Care Facility

Resident may incur a transportation charge to be relocated to another facility. Terms of
the other facilities charges or the reservation of your residential living accommodation
are outlined below.
1. Health Care Center
Resident shall pay the applicable Daily Rate set forth in StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s Rate Schedule for routine assisted living or nursing care services in
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Health Care Center. A description of the routine
assisted living and nursing care services covered by and included in the Daily
Rate and ancillary services not covered by or included in the Daily Rate is
contained in StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Rate Schedule, which is subject to
change from time to time. StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to
determine the scope and extent of services provided in the Health Care Center.
Certain higher acuity or higher level of care services, such as ventilator
dependency care, may not be available. To the extent that StoneRidge Retirement
Living provides any specialized, non-routine nursing care services for higher
levels of care, those services shall be provided at an additional charge over and
above the Daily Rate.
2. Other Health Care Facility
Resident shall pay all costs and charges for care in any personal or nursing care
facility to which Resident may be transferred because of insufficient space in the
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Health Care Center or because Resident is unable to meet the criteria for
admission to the Health Care Center. Resident shall pay all costs and charges
related to Resident’s transfer to and occupancy of any other health care facility.
3. Reservation of Living Accommodation
In the case of Single Occupancy, during any temporary transfer to the Health Care
Center or other health care facility, Resident shall continue to pay the then current
applicable Monthly Fee to reserve the residential accommodation. Upon the
permanent transfer of Resident to the Health Care Center or other health care
facility and surrender of the residential accommodation, the obligation to pay the
Monthly Fee shall cease.
In the case of Double Occupancy, Co-Resident shall continue to pay the then
current applicable Monthly Fee for Co-Resident’s continued Occupancy of the
residential accommodation or to reserve the accommodation.
Upon the permanent transfer of both Co-Residents to the Health Care Center or
other health care facility, the obligation to pay the Monthly Fee shall cease.
F.

Return to Residence after Transfer

If, following permanent transfer, and after release of a Residential Accommodation,
StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that Resident has recovered sufficiently to
satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy of a Residential Accommodation, Resident shall
receive the first available accommodation with a floor plan comparable to the one
relinquished.
G.

StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Obligation

StoneRidge Retirement Living agrees that the Resident shall not be liable to a health care
provider for services, which StoneRidge has agreed to provide under this Agreement. In
the event a health care provider seeks payment from the Resident, StoneRidge Retirement
Living shall assume liability for payment of the health care services rendered, if the
health care services rendered are services which StoneRidge has agreed to furnish to the
Resident in consideration of the Resident’s payment of the Entrance Fee and Monthly
Fees. For purposes of this paragraph, the term “health care provider” shall include
employees of StoneRidge Retirement Living, on a fee-for-service basis, or otherwise.
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IV.

RESIDENTIAL LIVING FEES
A.

Application Fee

Resident shall pay to StoneRidge Retirement Living a non-refundable Application Fee at
the time of submitting the preliminary application for admission.
B.

Entrance Fee

There is no entrance fee associated with this contract as resident has selected the Monthly
Plan.
C.

Monthly Fee

Resident shall pay to StoneRidge Retirement Living a Monthly Fee for services provided.
Procedure and terms are as follows:

V.

1.

The Monthly Fee is due upon receipt which will be in the form of a
monthly statement. The monthly statement will arrive on or before the 5th
day of each month. Interest will be charged for fees not paid by the 7th
day of that month at a rate of one percent (1%).

2.

Payment of the full Monthly Fee begins on the Designated Occupancy
Date. If Resident does not assume Occupancy by the 90th day after
payment of the reservation deposit, the monthly fee will be due as in
Paragraph F.1.

3.

The Monthly Fee may be adjusted from time to time. StoneRidge
Retirement Living will provide at least thirty (30) day’s advance written
notice of any changes in the Monthly Fee.

4.

The Monthly Statement may include charges for miscellaneous, ancillary
or other services.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY
It is StoneRidge Retirement Living’s policy that this Residency Agreement shall not be
terminated solely because of Resident’s financial inability to pay the Monthly Fee or
other charges, if (a) Resident presents to StoneRidge Retirement Living’s administration
facts which justify financial assistance, and (b) any necessary financial assistance can be
granted or continued without impairing the ability of StoneRidge Retirement Living to
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provide care for its other Resident and to attain its objectives while operating on a sound
financial basis. Below is a general outline of how the policy operates:

VI.

A.

To be eligible for financial assistance, Resident shall not have transferred, gifted
or depleted resources in contemplation of the execution of this Agreement, or
subsequently, which were represented as being available or which would impair
resident’s ability to satisfy Resident’s financial obligations under this Agreement.
Resident agrees to provide initial and ongoing financial information as required.

B.

In the event that Resident’s income is or becomes insufficient to pay the monthly
expenses incurred, Resident shall take all necessary steps to sell and liquidate
capital assets and other resources in order to fulfill Resident’s financial
obligations to StoneRidge Retirement Living.

C.

It is the Resident’s responsibility to seek all other available sources of financial
assistance including family, church or social welfare agencies which may be in a
position to render financial assistance.

D.

Resident is required to apply for, and to take the steps necessary to obtain, if
qualified, financial assistance from any appropriate governmental agency.
Resident is required to report to StoneRidge Retirement Living any material
increase in Resident’s assets or the assets value.

E.

Resident shall not sell or otherwise transfer property for less than the fair market
value of the property without the written consent of StoneRidge Retirement
Living. Resident’s estate shall be liable for any amount of subsidy provided by
StoneRidge Retirement Living to Resident, and such amount shall be deducted
from the funds otherwise due Resident’s estate as a refund under this Agreement.

F.

If financial assistance is granted, there is no guarantee that such assistance can or
will continue indefinitely, or for any specific period of time. The amount of any
subsidy shall be determined solely by StoneRidge Retirement Living in
accordance with this financial assistance policy.

MARRIAGE AND/OR ADDITIONAL OCCUPANTS
A.

Non-Resident

In the event that a single Resident wishes to marry or have another person enter
StoneRidge Retirement Living and share Resident’s Residential Accommodation as a CoResident, the proposed Additional Occupant must file an application for admission and
meet the Conditions of Occupancy and other admission requirements applicable to
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Resident of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Admittance of an additional Occupant shall
be at the sole discretion of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Upon approval, the Monthly
Fee shall be increased to the Double Occupancy rate.
If StoneRidge determines that the non-Resident does not meet the Conditions of
Occupancy and other admission requirements for StoneRidge Retirement Living, the
Resident shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement in accordance with the termination
provisions set forth in this Agreement.
B.

Other Resident

In the event that Resident desires either to marry another Resident or to share a
Residential Accommodation with another Resident, Resident shall select and designate in
writing at least ninety (90) days in advance of the proposed move, which one of the two
individual residences shall be thereafter occupied jointly. Upon transfer, the Monthly Fee
for Double Occupancy of the designated Residential Accommodation shall be paid. The
Residency Agreement shall be amended accordingly.
VII.

TERMINATION/ RECISSION OF AGREEMENT
The following is an outline as to the types of Termination or Recission of this
Agreement that may occur and the associated procedure we will follow:
A.

Termination by Resident
1.

Resident may terminate this Agreement within seven (7) days of execution
by signing the attached Notice of Right to Rescind and delivering it to
StoneRidge Retirement Living.

2.

After the lapse of the seven (7) day rescission period, but prior to the
Designated Occupancy Date, Resident may terminate this Agreement by
delivering written notice to StoneRidge Retirement Living.

3.

After Occupancy, Resident may terminate this Agreement by delivery of
ninety (90) days prior written notice to StoneRidge Retirement Living.
Termination is effective upon surrender of the Residential
Accommodation. The Resident's obligation regarding the Monthly Fee
continues as long as the Resident occupies the accommodation.
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B.

Termination by StoneRidge Retirement Living
1.

At any time prior to Occupancy, StoneRidge Retirement Living may
terminate this Agreement for failure of Resident to meet the Conditions of
Occupancy or any other cause by delivery of written notice to Resident.

2.

StoneRidge Retirement Living may terminate this Agreement after
Occupancy upon a
determination of just cause and delivery of thirty
(30) days written notice or upon delivery of such written notice as is
reasonable under the circumstances, to Resident or Resident’s
representative.
The refund provisions of this Agreement shall apply to termination for just
cause in the same manner as such provisions would apply to any other
termination. “Just cause” includes but is not limited to:

C.

(a)

Material misrepresentation or omissions on the financial or
medical forms.

(b)

Resident’s actions that create a serious threat to the life,
health, safety and peace of Resident or other Resident as
determined solely by StoneRidge Retirement Living

(c)

Breach or default of any of the terms of this Agreement

(d)

Willful and continuing violation of operating policies
defined in the Resident’s Handbook

Incapacity or Death Prior to Residency
1.

Single Occupancy: If death occurs prior to occupancy, or if through
illness, injury or incapacity the Resident is precluded from becoming a
Resident under the terms of this Agreement, this Agreement is
automatically rescinded. The Resident’s legal representative shall receive
a full refund of all moneys paid to StoneRidge Retirement Living less the
application fee and any Monthly Fees paid, and those costs specifically
incurred at the request of the Resident.

2.

Double Occupancy: If death of one of two co-Resident occurs prior to
occupancy, the surviving co-resident may terminate this agreement or
amend it to single occupancy. If terminated, the Co-Resident shall receive
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a refund of all monies paid to StoneRidge Retirement Living less the
application fee and any Monthly Fees paid, and those costs specifically
incurred at the request of the Resident.
VIII. ENTRANCE FEE REFUND
No entrance fee has been paid in conjunction with this contract.
IX.

RESIDENT RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS
A.

Right of Self Organization

Resident of StoneRidge Retirement Living shall have the right of self-organization.
B.

Right to Receive Disclosure Statements

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall deliver to Resident at the time of the execution of
this Agreement, and at least annually thereafter, a copy of its Disclosure Statement.
C.

Guest Privileges

Resident shall be authorized to entertain and accommodate guests in the Resident’s
accommodation for a period not to exceed fourteen (14) consecutive days or twenty-eight
(28) days annually for the same individual visitor(s). In the event the stay exceeds
twenty-eight (28) days, prior approval needs to be requested.
D.

Rights to Property

The Resident is not entitled to any right, title or interest in the real or personal property or
any other assets of StoneRidge Retirement Living.
E.

Facility Access to Individual Residence

Resident shall permit StoneRidge Retirement Living personnel to enter the private
residence for the purpose of making reasonable maintenance inspections and repairs.
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall have the right to enter the Residential
Accommodation to perform scheduled housekeeping, to respond to medical alerts, to
respond to the fire alarm system, or in other appropriate circumstances.
F.

Use of Individual Residence

Resident shall maintain the Residential Accommodation in a clean, sanitary, and orderly
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condition. Failure to do so will permit StoneRidge Retirement Living to have the right to
take any remedial action and the cost of such action shall be charged to Resident.
Damage to the individual residence beyond ordinary wear and tear is the responsibility of
Resident and costs for such repairs will be billed to the Resident or the Resident’s Estate
G.

Health Insurance and Third Party Payments

Resident must maintain certain insurances and agree to follow the procedures
below:
1.

Resident shall procure and maintain in force at his or her own expense
maximum coverage available to the Resident under the Federal
Government’s Social Security programs (“Medicare A and B”), and at
least one Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance policy such as those
offered by the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans, to cover skilled nursing
services, or such other comparable medical insurance plan which provides
equivalent benefits and is approved in writing by StoneRidge Retirement
Living.

2.

Should the Resident fail to arrange for such medical insurance coverage,
the Resident hereby authorizes StoneRidge Retirement Living to make
application on his or her behalf; to pay for the Resident any premiums in
connection with such insurance; and to bill these costs to the Resident on
the monthly statement.

3.

If Resident becomes eligible to receive payments from any third party for
services provided under this Agreement, Resident shall at all times
cooperate fully with StoneRidge and each third-party payor so that
StoneRidge may make claim for and receive any applicable third party
payments. StoneRidge Retirement Living has the right to any applicable
benefits payable to StoneRidge Retirement Living under the insurance
coverage required by this Agreement.

4.

Resident may only enroll in a health maintenance organization (“HMO”)
or other managed care plan providing equivalent Medicare benefits with
the written consent of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Prior to enrolling in
any HMO or managed care plan, Resident shall sign an addendum
identifying the plan and reflecting StoneRidge Retirement Living’s
approval or disapproval.
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5.

H.

In the event that Resident’s HMO does not agree to provide payment for
services provided by StoneRidge Retirement Living and Resident is
transferred to another provider, Resident shall continue to pay the Monthly
Fee and additionally all costs and charges related to the transfer to and
occupancy of the other provider.

Other Insurance

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide insurance on StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s property only. Resident is required to purchase and maintain personal property
insurance and comprehensive liability insurance. Resident is solely responsible for
insurance on his/her own automobile.
I.

Power of Attorney

Resident will supply StoneRidge Retirement Living a true and correct copy of a signed
and notarized general durable power of attorney naming a third party of the Resident’s
choice as his/her attorney-in-fact in conjunction with the execution of this agreement.
The attorney-in-fact shall be authorized to conduct business or financial transactions in
the event of the Resident’s incapacity or disability. Resident agrees to maintain a valid
Power of Attorney at all times during residency.
J.

Advance Directives

Resident will supply StoneRidge Retirement Living with a copy of any advance
directives, such as a living will, existing at the time of this agreement or executed in the
future.
K.

Change of Accommodation

Resident has the option to move from the Residential Accommodation identified in this
Agreement to another accommodation within StoneRidge, if available and approved by
the Staff. Resident’s request for change must be submitted in writing to StoneRidge
Retirement Living. At the time an accommodation becomes available Resident must
submit a current financial statement.
If StoneRidge approves and Resident moves to a larger Residential accommodation,
Resident shall pay the difference between the Entrance Fee paid and the current Entrance
Fee for the requested Residential Accommodation. The Entrance Fee paid upon transfer
to a larger Residential Accommodation shall be amortized in the same proportion as the
prior Entrance Fee is amortized as of the date of the transfer.
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L.

Rights to Property/Subordination

Resident is not entitled to any right, title or interest in the real or personal property or any
other assets of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Any rights, privileges, or benefits under
this Agreement, including Resident’s right to a full or partial refund, shall be subordinate
to any existing or subsequent interest in the real or personal property of StoneRidge
Retirement Living.
M.

Injury Caused by Others

StoneRidge Retirement Living is not responsible for any injury, illness or damage caused
to the Resident or their property by the negligence or willful misconduct of another
Resident or other third party.
N.

Policies/Rules/Regulations

Resident agrees to abide by all the policies of StoneRidge Retirement Living currently in
effect and hereafter adopted. Current policies and future revisions will be available to the
Resident.
O.

Limitations on Increases in the Entrance Fee

Charges for health services paid in one lump sum in the form of the Entrance Fee shall
not be increased or changed during the term of this Agreement, except for changes
required by state or federal assistance programs.
X.

MISCELLANEOUS
A.

Average Annual Cost of Services

The average annual cost of providing care and services during the most recent twelve
month period for which a report is available for a Resident is stated in the annual copy of
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Disclosure Statement.
B.

Severability

The various provisions of this Agreement shall be severable one from another. If any
provision of this Agreement is found by a court or administrative body of proper
jurisdiction and authority to be invalid, the other provisions shall remain in full force and
effect as if the invalid provision had not been a part of this Agreement.
PRESIDENT & CEO ____________

|

16

RESIDENT INITIAL ____________

C.

Entire Agreement

This Agreement along with any addendum(s) or schedules constitutes the entire
Agreement between StoneRidge Retirement Living and Resident.
StoneRidge
Retirement Living shall not be responsible or liable for any statements, representations or
promises made by any person representing StoneRidge Retirement Living, unless such
statements, representations or promises are set forth in this Agreement. Furthermore, no
act, agreement or statement of any resident, or of an individual purchasing care for a
resident under any agreement to furnish care to the resident, shall constitute a valid
waiver of any provision of this agreement intended for the benefit or protection of the
resident or the individual purchasing care for the resident.
D.

Bindings

This Agreement is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns of the Resident and StoneRidge Retirement Living.
E.

Headings

Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect
in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
F.

Governance

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
G.

Notice

Notice, when required by the terms of this Agreement, shall be deemed to have been
properly given, if and when delivered personally or, if sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, when postmarked, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:
To StoneRidge Retirement Living:

Administrative Office
StoneRidge Retirement Living
440 East Lincoln Ave.
Myerstown, PA 17067

To Resident (Before Occupancy):

(Name)
(Street)
(City, State, Zip)
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XI.

SCHEDULE OF FEES

NAME:
ACCOMMODATION:
ENTRANCE FEE:
MONTHLY FEE:
OCCUPANCY DATE:
OTHER CONDITIONS:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Resident and StoneRidge Retirement Living have set their hands and
signed this Agreement.

______________________________
WITNESS

____________________________
PRESIDENT & CEO

_____________________________
WITNESS

_____________________________
RESIDENT:

______________________________
WITNESS

_____________________________
RESIDENT:
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Date Rescission Period Begins: Date
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO RESCIND

You may rescind and terminate your RESIDENCY AGREEMENT, without penalty or
forfeiture, within seven (7) days of the above date. You are not required to move into the
continuing care facility before the expiration of this seven (7) day period. No other agreement or
statement you sign shall constitute a waiver of your right to rescind your agreement within the
seven (7) day period.
To rescind your RESIDENCY AGREEMENT, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of
this Notice, or any other dated written notice, letter or telegram stating your desire to rescind to
StoneRidge Retirement Living, Myerstown, Pennsylvania, not later than midnight of Date.
Pursuant to this Notice, I hereby cancel my Reservation Agreement.

Date: __________________________

________________________________
Name
________________________________
Name
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RESIDENCY AGREEMENT
StoneRidge Retirement Living is a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to establish and operate StoneRidge Poplar Run as a
continuing care retirement community, located at 440-450 East Lincoln Avenue,
Myerstown, PA.
NAMES (referred to in this Agreement as “Resident”) has on this (Date) day of (Month),
2013, entered into this RESIDENCY AGREEMENT with StoneRidge Retirement
Living, (referred to as "StoneRidge" or "StoneRidge Retirement Living"), the terms of
which are set out below. (If two persons sign this Agreement, the word “Resident” shall
apply to them jointly and separately, as required by the context.)
I.

RESIDENTIAL LIVING SERVICES AND FACILITIES
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide Resident, who meets StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s Conditions of Occupancy, with the Residential Accommodation, common
facilities and designated services specified in this Agreement, beginning on the
Designated Occupancy Date or Occupancy, whichever is earlier.
A.

Living Accommodation

StoneRidge Retirement Living agrees that you shall have a personal and non-assignable
right to occupy a Living Accommodation in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.
B.

Furnishings

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide a refrigerator, range/oven, microwave,
carpeting, dishwasher, blinds and a garbage disposal. Resident may request optional
furnishings or fixtures at an additional charge. Upon installation, all additional
furnishings or fixtures immediately become the property of StoneRidge Retirement
Living and shall remain in the residence after termination of the Agreement.
PRESIDENT & CEO____________
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C.

Common Facilities

Resident may use, in common with other members of StoneRidge, the dining room, arts
and crafts area, beauty and barber shop, lobbies, lounges, library, designated laundry
facilities, recreation room, woodshop, music room and the conference room.
D.

Storage Facilities

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide one storage unit in a designated area for
your apartment unit.
E.

Structural Changes and Redecoration

Structural or physical change or redecoration to the accommodation may be made only
with the written approval of the StoneRidge Retirement Living administrative staff. The
cost of such alterations and restoration to original condition, except that cost due to
normal wear and tear, shall be paid by the Resident.
F.

Utilities

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide, as part of the Monthly Fee, water, sewer,
heat, electricity, air conditioning, and basic TV service.
G.

Telephone

A monthly usage fee established by StoneRidge Retirement Living and any other
telephone service charges, including long distance service charges, are not included in the
Monthly Fee and shall be paid by the Resident.
H.

Maintenance and Repair Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall repair, maintain and replace equipment owned by
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
The Resident will be responsible for repairs,
maintenance and replacement of the Resident’s personal property.
I.

Grounds

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide grounds keeping, lawn care, snow removal
and trash removal from designated areas.
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J.

Dining Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living makes available a variety of dining opportunities.
Procedures for the dining services are as follows:

K.

1.

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide, as part of this contract, a
meal credit as part of the monthly fee. The details of this credit and its
availability are explained in the Resident Handbook and may change from
time to time. Resident shall choose how they desire to utilize the credit
based on the personal preference.

2.

Meal delivery service in the event of illness shall be provided at no
additional charge for an unlimited period of time; however StoneRidge
reserves the right to evaluate resident abilities on an individual basis.
Residents must provide StoneRidge Retirement Living with a physician’s
order indicating the need for sick tray service for periods longer than two
(2) days.

3.

StoneRidge Retirement Living may accommodate special diets with a
separate charge for diets requiring special preparation.

4.

Additional meal plans may be available upon request.

5.

Guest meals will be available at prevailing rates

Housekeeping

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide light housekeeping services on a regular
basis in accordance with the policy established in the Resident Handbook.
L.

Transportation

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide transportation, according to a predetermined schedule and route, for medical appointments within a pre-determined radius.
Scheduled transportation is also provided to local shopping centers, supermarkets and
churches. Additional transportation services are available for an additional fee.
M.

Security

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide security services, including an electronic
entry system as described in the Resident Handbook.
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N.

Parking

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide one designated parking space for each
Residence.
O.

Scope of Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to revise the services included in the
Monthly Fee and to adjust the Monthly Fee appropriately.

II.

MEDICAL AND EMERGENCY SERVICES
A.

Emergency Response System

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide each residence with a call system by which
Resident can contact StoneRidge Retirement Living personnel available to respond
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, to assess the Resident’s need. If
there is a need for additional or emergency medical assistance, StoneRidge Retirement
Living shall contact emergency or other health care providers.
While the call system may be used to inform StoneRidge Retirement Living of a medical
emergency or a security concern, StoneRidge Retirement Living disclaims any and all
responsibility for responding to medical emergencies and for any liability for any injury
or damages resulting from mechanical failure of the emergency call system.
B.

Home Health Care Services

Home Health Care Services available at StoneRidge Retirement Living on a fee-for
service basis include skilled nursing care, physical, occupational, speech, respiratory, and
enterostomal therapies, home infusion services and supplies, and social services for the
homebound. The scope and details concerning these services can be found in the Resident
Handbook. Resident has the right to secure other outside services with approval from
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
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StoneRidge Retirement Living does not assume responsibility for the scope of care
provided by outside home or health care personnel. Such services are hired at the sole
discretion of Resident. Resident is required to confirm that any approved provider of
such services has worker’s compensation insurance coverage. Resident releases
StoneRidge Retirement Living from any liability for any damages or injuries caused to
Resident, other Resident or staff, by any home or health care personnel not employed by
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
C.

Emergency Transportation

Emergency Transportation is available through annual membership with a local First Aid
Unit. It is the responsibility of the Resident to enroll in and maintain annual membership.
Further information is available in the Resident Handbook.

D.

Limitations on Care

The Health Care Center is not designed to care for persons who abuse alcohol or drugs or
who are afflicted with serious mental illness and require specialized psychiatric care or
services not authorized or permitted under the nursing or personal care licensure
regulations. If StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that Resident’s mental or
physical condition is such that Resident’s continued presence in StoneRidge Retirement
Living is either dangerous or detrimental to the life, health, safety of Resident or other
Resident, or the peaceful enjoyment of StoneRidge Retirement Living by other Resident,
StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident to an appropriate outside care
facility at Resident’s expense. StoneRidge Retirement Living’s determination shall be
made in writing and signed by the Medical Director and the Administrator of StoneRidge
Retirement Living. Resident shall continue to pay the Monthly Fee in accordance with
the terms of this agreement until termination of said agreement.
III.

NURSING CARE AND PERSONAL CARE SERVICES
A.

Health Care Center

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall operate Personal Care and Nursing Care facilities in
the Health Care Center which are licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall make available, for an additional charge, Personal
Care services in private or semi-private accommodations and routine Nursing Care
Services in semi-private accommodations on a temporary or permanent basis. Resident
shall sign an admission agreement upon transfer to either the Personal Care or Nursing
Care facilities, which agreements will supplement the terms of this Agreement.
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B.

Authority To Transfer

StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident from and between the Residential
Accommodation and the Health Care Center for any of the following reasons:
1.

StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that the Resident is
unable to satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy for the Residential
Accommodation.

2.

StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that such a move should
be made.
(a)

For the proper operation of StoneRidge

(b)

To comply with regulations of the Department of
Public Welfare, the Pennsylvania Department of
Health, regulations of the local Fire Department, or
any other duly constituted authorities or agencies;
or

(c)

To meet the requirements of law.

In the event that there is insufficient space in the Health Care Center at such time as
Resident may require personal care or nursing care services, then StoneRidge Retirement
Living may transfer Resident to an outside facility selected by Resident or StoneRidge
Retirement Living until such time as a nursing bed or personal care accommodation
becomes available.
If Resident’s physical or mental health has deteriorated to the degree that Resident's
presence in StoneRidge is detrimental to Resident or to the health, safety or peace of
other Resident, or if Resident is unable to meet the admission criteria for the HealthCare
Center, StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident to a hospital, or other
outside healthcare provider.
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C.

Transfer Procedures

The Resident or responsible party will be consulted in advance to the extent possible.
Recommendations for relocation to the Health Care Center will be reviewed internally in
accordance with the utilization review procedures in effect at the time. Full consideration
will be given to the Resident’s or responsible party’s wishes in this process. However,
StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to make the final decision in the best
interest of the overall facility operation and the health, safety and well being of the other
Resident.
D.

Temporary or Permanent Nature of Transfer

StoneRidge Retirement Living, in accordance with its utilization review procedures, shall
be responsible to determine whether the transfer is temporary or permanent and whether
Resident is able to satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy. StoneRidge Retirement Living's
decision regarding the temporary or permanent nature of any transfer may be made prior
to the lapse of thirty (30) days from the date of transfer or at any other time deemed
appropriate by StoneRidge Retirement Living. If Resident’s transfer is temporary,
Resident may retain possession of the Residential Accommodation for the purpose of
resuming residency.
Resident shall continue to pay the applicable monthly fee while receiving services in the
HealthCare Center.
If Resident’s transfer is permanent, Resident’s Residential
Accommodation shall be released (if not occupied by a Co-Resident) and made available
for occupancy by another Resident. Resident and/or Resident’s responsible party shall be
notified and given thirty (30) days to remove personal possessions.
E.

Costs Related to Transfer to the Health Care Center or Other Health Care Facility

Resident may incur a transportation charge to be relocated to another facility. Terms of
the other facilities charges or the reservation of your residential living accommodation
are outlined below.
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1. Health Care Center
Resident shall pay the applicable Daily Rate set forth in StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s Rate Schedule for routine personal care or nursing care services in
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Health Care Center. A description of the routine
personal care and nursing care services covered by and included in the Daily Rate
and ancillary services not covered by or included in the Daily Rate is contained in
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Rate Schedule, which is subject to change from
time to time. StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to determine the
scope and extent of services provided in the Health Care Center. Certain higher
acuity or higher level of care services, such as ventilator dependency care, may
not be available. To the extent that StoneRidge Retirement Living provides any
specialized, non-routine nursing care services for higher levels of care, those
services shall be provided at an additional charge over and above the Daily Rate.
2. Other Health Care Facility
Resident shall pay all costs and charges for care in any personal or nursing care
facility to which Resident may be transferred because of insufficient space in the
Health Care Center or because Resident is unable to meet the criteria for
admission to the Health Care Center. Resident shall pay all costs and charges
related to Resident’s transfer to and occupancy of any other health care facility.
3. Reservation of Living Accommodation
In the case of Single Occupancy, during any temporary transfer to the Health Care
Center or other health care facility, Resident shall continue to pay the then current
applicable Monthly Fee to reserve the residential accommodation. Upon the
permanent transfer of Resident to the Health Care Center or other health care
facility and surrender of the residential accommodation, the obligation to pay the
Monthly Fee shall cease.
In the case of Double Occupancy, Co-Resident shall continue to pay the then
current applicable Monthly Fee for Co-Resident’s continued Occupancy of the
residential accommodation or to reserve the accommodation.
Upon the permanent transfer of both Co-Resident to the Health Care Center or
other health care facility, the obligation to pay the Monthly Fee shall cease.
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F.

Return to Residence after Transfer

If, following permanent transfer, and after release of a Residential Accommodation,
StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that Resident has recovered sufficiently to
satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy of a Residential Accommodation, Resident shall
receive the first available accommodation with a floor plan comparable to the one
relinquished.
G.

StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Obligation

StoneRidge Retirement Living agrees that the Resident shall not be liable to a health care
provider for services, which StoneRidge has agreed to provide under this Agreement. In
the event a health care provider seeks payment from the Resident, StoneRidge Retirement
Living shall assume liability for payment of the health care services rendered, if the
health care services rendered are services which StoneRidge has agreed to furnish to the
Resident in consideration of the Resident’s payment of the Entrance Fee and Monthly
Fees. For purposes of this paragraph, the term “health care provider” shall include
employees of StoneRidge Retirement Living, on a fee-for-service basis, or otherwise.
IV.

RESIDENTIAL LIVING FEES
A.

Application Fee

Resident shall pay to StoneRidge Retirement Living a non-refundable Application Fee at
the time of submitting the preliminary application for admission.
B.

Entrance Fee

The Entrance Fee that is paid by Resident, is a fee to purchase a contract for services
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and is paid as a condition of
entrance to StoneRidge Retirement Living. The Resident is required to pay the Entrance
Fee in accordance with the payment schedule at paragraph C. StoneRidge Retirement
Living may use and apply these fees to any proper corporate purpose.

PRESIDENT & CEO ____________

|

9

RESIDENT INITIAL ____________

C.

Amortization of Entrance Fee
The entrance fee will be amortized as follows:
Year one - twenty percent (20%)
Year two - twenty percent (20%)
Year three - fifteen percent (15%)
Year four - fifteen percent (15%)
Year five - five percent (5%)
The remaining twenty-five (25%) of the Entrance Fee shall not be amortized and
shall be refunded to Resident upon termination of this Agreement in accordance
with the refund provisions of the Agreement in Section VIII.

D.

Entrance Fee Credit for Personal Care or Nursing Care
Upon Resident's permanent transfer to the Health Care Center, Resident may use
the unamortized portion of the Entrance Fee, including the Entrance Fee refund
amount, as a credit against the Daily Rate for services provided in the personal
care or nursing care facility.
In cases of Double Occupancy, and only for purposes of the Entrance Fee Credit,
the Entrance Fee shall be allocated to each Co-Resident in equal shares. The
credit does not apply to charges for ancillary services. The Entrance Fee is
available only until the refund amount is fully depleted.

E.

Payment Schedule
1.

Resident shall pay, no later than thirty (30) days from the date of notice
from StoneRidge Retirement Living of final approval of Resident’s
application, five percent (5%) of the Entrance Fee as a reservation deposit.

2.

The reservation deposit is fully credited against the Entrance Fee
for the accommodation selected by the Resident.
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3.

F.

The Resident shall pay the remaining balance of ninety-five percent (95%)
of the Entrance Fee, on or before the Designated Occupancy Date or
Occupancy, whichever is earlier.

Monthly Fee

Resident shall pay to StoneRidge Retirement Living a Monthly Fee for services provided.
Procedure and terms are as follows:

V.

1.

The Monthly Fee is due upon receipt which will be in the form of a
monthly statement. The monthly statement will arrive on or before the 5th
day of each month. Interest will be charged for fees not paid by the 7th
day of that month at a rate of one percent (1%).

2.

Payment of the full Monthly Fee begins on the Designated Occupancy
Date. If Resident does not assume Occupancy by the 90th day after
payment of the reservation deposit, the monthly fee will be due as in
Paragraph F.1.

3.

The Monthly Fee may be adjusted from time to time. StoneRidge
Retirement Living will provide at least thirty (30) day’s advance written
notice of any changes in the Monthly Fee.

4.

The Monthly Statement may include charges for miscellaneous, ancillary
or other services.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY
It is StoneRidge Retirement Living’s policy that this Residency Agreement shall not be
terminated solely because of Resident’s financial inability to pay the Monthly Fee or
other charges, if (a) Resident presents to StoneRidge Retirement Living’s administration
facts which justify financial assistance, and (b) any necessary financial assistance can be
granted or continued without impairing the ability of StoneRidge Retirement Living to
provide care for its other Resident and to attain its objectives while operating on a sound
financial basis. Below is a general outline of how the policy operates:
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A.

To be eligible for financial assistance, Resident shall not have transferred, gifted
or depleted resources in contemplation of the execution of this Agreement, or
subsequently, which were represented as being available or which would impair
resident’s ability to satisfy Resident’s financial obligations under this Agreement.
Resident agrees to provide initial and ongoing financial information as required.

B.

In the event that Resident’s income is or becomes insufficient to pay the monthly
expenses incurred, Resident shall take all necessary steps to sell and liquidate
capital assets and other resources in order to fulfill Resident’s financial
obligations to StoneRidge Retirement Living.

C.

It is the Resident’s responsibility to seek all other available sources of financial
assistance including family, church or social welfare agencies which may be in a
position to render financial assistance.

D.

Resident is required to apply for, and to take the steps necessary to obtain, if
qualified, financial assistance from any appropriate governmental agency.
Resident is required to report to StoneRidge Retirement Living any material
increase in Resident’s assets or the assets value.

E.

Resident shall not sell or otherwise transfer property for less than the fair market
value of the property without the written consent of StoneRidge Retirement
Living. Resident’s estate shall be liable for any amount of subsidy provided by
StoneRidge Retirement Living to Resident, and such amount shall be deducted
from the funds otherwise due Resident’s estate as a refund under this Agreement.

F.

If financial assistance is granted, there is no guarantee that such assistance can or
will continue indefinitely, or for any specific period of time. The amount of any
subsidy shall be determined solely by StoneRidge Retirement Living in
accordance with this financial assistance policy.
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VI.

MARRIAGE AND/OR ADDITIONAL OCCUPANTS
A.

Non-Resident

In the event that a single Resident wishes to marry or have another person enter
StoneRidge Retirement Living and share Resident’s Residential Accommodation as a CoResident, the proposed Additional Occupant must file an application for admission and
meet the Conditions of Occupancy and other admission requirements applicable to
Resident of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Admittance of an additional Occupant shall
be at the sole discretion of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Upon approval, the Monthly
Fee shall be increased to the Double Occupancy rate.
If StoneRidge determines that the non-Resident does not meet the Conditions of
Occupancy and other admission requirements for StoneRidge Retirement Living, the
Resident shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement in accordance with the termination
provisions set forth in this Agreement.
B.

Other Resident

In the event that Resident desires either to marry another Resident or to share a
Residential Accommodation with another Resident, Resident shall select and designate in
writing at least ninety (90) days in advance of the proposed move, which one of the two
individual residences shall be thereafter occupied jointly. Upon transfer, the Monthly Fee
for Double Occupancy of the designated Residential Accommodation shall be paid. The
Residency Agreement shall be amended accordingly.
VII.

TERMINATION/ RECISSION OF AGREEMENT
The following is an outline as to the types of Termination or Recission of this
Agreement that may occur and the associated procedure we will follow:
A.

Termination by Resident
1.

Resident may terminate this Agreement within seven (7) days of execution
by signing the attached Notice of Right to Rescind and delivering it to
StoneRidge Retirement Living.

2.

After the lapse of the seven (7) day rescission period, but prior to the
Designated Occupancy Date, Resident may terminate this Agreement by
delivering written notice to StoneRidge Retirement Living.
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3.

B.

After Occupancy, Resident may terminate this Agreement by delivery of
ninety (90) days prior written notice to StoneRidge Retirement Living.
Termination is effective upon surrender of the Residential
Accommodation. The Resident's obligation regarding the Monthly Fee
continues as long as the Resident occupies the accommodation.

Termination by StoneRidge Retirement Living
1.

At any time prior to Occupancy, StoneRidge Retirement Living may
terminate this Agreement for failure of Resident to meet the Conditions of
Occupancy or any other cause by delivery of written notice to Resident.

2.

StoneRidge Retirement Living may terminate this Agreement after
Occupancy upon a
determination of just cause and delivery of thirty
(30) days written notice or upon delivery of such written notice as is
reasonable under the circumstances, to Resident or Resident’s
representative.
The refund provisions of this Agreement shall apply to termination for just
cause in the same manner as such provisions would apply to any other
termination. “Just cause” includes but is not limited to:

C.

(a)

Material misrepresentation or omissions on the financial or
medical forms.

(b)

Resident’s actions that create a serious threat to the life,
health, safety and peace of Resident or other Resident as
determined solely by StoneRidge Retirement Living

(c)

Breach or default of any of the terms of this Agreement

(d)

Willful and continuing violation of operating policies
defined in the Resident’s Handbook

Incapacity or Death Prior to Residency
1.

Single Occupancy: If death occurs prior to occupancy, or if through
illness, injury or incapacity the Resident is precluded from becoming a
Resident under the terms of this Agreement, this Agreement is
automatically rescinded.
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The Resident’s legal representative shall receive a full refund of all
moneys paid to StoneRidge Retirement Living less the application fee and
any Monthly Fees paid, and those costs specifically incurred at the request
of the Resident.
2.

Double Occupancy: If death of one of two co-Resident occurs prior to
occupancy, the surviving co-resident may terminate this agreement or
amend it to single occupancy. If terminated, the Co-Resident shall receive
a refund of all monies paid to StoneRidge Retirement Living less the
application fee and any Monthly Fees paid, and those costs specifically
incurred at the request of the Resident.

VIII. ENTRANCE FEE REFUND
Upon termination of this Agreement, StoneRidge Retirement Living shall refund the
Entrance Fee in accordance with the provisions below. The Application Fee is a nonrefundable processing fee.
A.

Termination before Occupancy

The Entrance Fee will be refunded in full within thirty (30) days if the Resident rescinds
this Agreement within seven (7) days of the execution of this Agreement in accordance
with the Notice of Right to Rescind.
B.

Termination after Recission Period and before Occupancy

The Entrance Fee will be refunded in full, less the application fee, reservation deposit and
any amounts to cover any unpaid charges or expenses incurred at the request of the
Resident.
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C.

Termination after Occupancy

The Entrance Fee shall be fully refundable within the first thirty (30) days of the
Designated Date of Occupancy or Occupancy, whichever occurs first, less the application
fee, reservation deposit and any amounts to cover any unpaid charges or expenses
incurred at the request of the Resident and to cover costs, other than those associated with
reasonable wear and tear, incurred by StoneRidge Retirement Living to restore or repair
the accommodation. After said thirty (30) days, StoneRidge Retirement Living shall
refund that portion of the Entrance Fee remaining unamortized as of the date of surrender
of the Residential Accommodation. StoneRidge Retirement Living shall deduct from the
refund amount any outstanding amounts owed to the community, or related corporations,
or to cover the cost of restoration of the Residential Accommodation beyond normal wear
and tear.
D.

Payment of Refunds

All refunds made pursuant to this Agreement will be made to Resident or Resident's
estate unless an addendum or supplemental agreement has been signed by the Resident
and given to the staff indicating the person or entity to which payment should be made.
Refunds to estates will only be made after receipt of a copy of the "Letters of
Testamentary". Refunds due following termination prior to Occupancy will be made
with three (3) months of the termination date. For termination after Occupancy,
applicable refunds will be made after Resident's Residential Accommodation has been
reoccupied by another Resident, and the Entrance Fee paid in full. All refunds shall be
calculated upon the unamortized portion of the Entrance Fee, less any fees or charges
outstanding.

IX.

RESIDENT RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS
A.

Right of Self Organization

Resident of StoneRidge Retirement Living shall have the right of self-organization.
B.

Right to Receive Disclosure Statements

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall deliver to Resident at the time of the execution of
this Agreement, and at least annually thereafter, a copy of its Disclosure Statement.
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C.

Guest Privileges

Resident shall be authorized to entertain and accommodate guests in the Resident’s
accommodation for a period not to exceed fourteen (14) consecutive days or twenty-eight
(28) days annually for the same individual visitor(s). In the event the stay exceeds
twenty-eight (28) days, prior approval needs to be requested.
D.

Rights to Property

The Resident is not entitled to any right, title or interest in the real or personal property or
any other assets of StoneRidge Retirement Living.

E.

Facility Access to Individual Residence

Resident shall permit StoneRidge Retirement Living personnel to enter the private
residence for the purpose of making reasonable maintenance inspections and repairs.
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall have the right to enter the Residential
Accommodation to perform scheduled housekeeping, to respond to medical alerts, to
respond to the fire alarm system, or in other appropriate circumstances.
F.

Use of Individual Residence

Resident shall maintain the Residential Accommodation in a clean, sanitary, and orderly
condition. Failure to do so will permit StoneRidge Retirement Living to have the right to
take any remedial action and the cost of such action shall be charged to Resident.
Damage to the individual residence beyond ordinary wear and tear is the responsibility of
Resident and costs for such repairs will be billed to the Resident or the Resident’s Estate
G.

Health Insurance and Third Party Payments

Resident must maintain certain insurances and agree to follow the procedures
below:
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1.

Resident shall procure and maintain in force at his or her own expense
maximum coverage available to the Resident under the Federal
Government’s Social Security programs (“Medicare A and B”), and at
least one Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance policy such as those
offered by the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans, to cover skilled nursing
services, or such other comparable medical insurance plan which provides
equivalent benefits and is approved in writing by StoneRidge Retirement
Living.

2.

Should the Resident fail to arrange for such medical insurance coverage,
the Resident hereby authorizes StoneRidge Retirement Living to make
application on his or her behalf; to pay for the Resident any premiums in
connection with such insurance; and to bill these costs to the Resident on
the monthly statement.

3.

If Resident becomes eligible to receive payments from any third party for
services provided under this Agreement, Resident shall at all times
cooperate fully with StoneRidge and each third-party payor so that
StoneRidge may make claim for and receive any applicable third party
payments. StoneRidge Retirement Living has the right to any applicable
benefits payable to StoneRidge Retirement Living under the insurance
coverage required by this Agreement.

4.

Resident may only enroll in a health maintenance organization (“HMO”)
or other managed care plan providing equivalent Medicare benefits with
the written consent of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Prior to enrolling in
any HMO or managed care plan, Resident shall sign an addendum
identifying the plan and reflecting StoneRidge Retirement Living’s
approval or disapproval.

5.

In the event that Resident’s HMO does not agree to provide payment for
services provided by StoneRidge Retirement Living and Resident is
transferred to another provider, Resident shall continue to pay the Monthly
Fee and additionally all costs and charges related to the transfer to and
occupancy of the other provider.
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H.

Other Insurance

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide insurance on StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s property only. Resident is required to purchase and maintain personal property
insurance and comprehensive liability insurance. Resident is solely responsible for
insurance on his/her own automobile.
I.

Power of Attorney

Resident will supply StoneRidge Retirement Living a true and correct copy of a signed
and notarized general durable power of attorney naming a third party of the Resident’s
choice as his/her attorney-in-fact in conjunction with the execution of this agreement.
The attorney-in-fact shall be authorized to conduct business or financial transactions in
the event of the Resident’s incapacity or disability. Resident agrees to maintain a valid
Power of Attorney at all times during residency.
J.

Advance Directives

Resident will supply StoneRidge Retirement Living with a copy of any advance
directives, such as a living will, existing at the time of this agreement or executed in the
future.
K.

Change of Accommodation

Resident has the option to move from the Residential Accommodation identified in this
Agreement to another accommodation within StoneRidge, if available and approved by
the Staff. Resident’s request for change must be submitted in writing to StoneRidge
Retirement Living. At the time an accommodation becomes available Resident must
submit a current financial statement.
If StoneRidge approves and Resident moves to a larger Residential accommodation,
Resident shall pay the difference between the Entrance Fee paid and the current Entrance
Fee for the requested Residential Accommodation. The Entrance Fee paid upon transfer
to a larger Residential Accommodation shall be amortized in the same proportion as the
prior Entrance Fee is amortized as of the date of the transfer.
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L.

Rights to Property/Subordination

Resident is not entitled to any right, title or interest in the real or personal property or any
other assets of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Any rights, privileges, or benefits under
this Agreement, including Resident’s right to a full or partial refund, shall be subordinate
to any existing or subsequent interest in the real or personal property of StoneRidge
Retirement Living.
M.

Injury Caused by Others

StoneRidge Retirement Living is not responsible for any injury, illness or damage caused
to the Resident or their property by the negligence or willful misconduct of another
Resident or other third party.
N.

Policies/Rules/Regulations

Resident agrees to abide by all the policies of StoneRidge Retirement Living currently in
effect and hereafter adopted. Current policies and future revisions will be available to the
Resident.
O.

Limitations on Increases in the Entrance Fee

Charges for health services paid in one lump sum in the form of the Entrance Fee shall
not be increased or changed during the term of this Agreement, except for changes
required by state or federal assistance programs.
X.

MISCELLANEOUS
A. Average Annual Cost of Services
The average annual cost of providing care and services during the most recent twelve
month period for which a report is available for a Resident is stated in the annual copy of
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Disclosure Statement.
B. Severability
The various provisions of this Agreement shall be severable one from another. If any
provision of this Agreement is found by a court or administrative body of proper
jurisdiction and authority to be invalid, the other provisions shall remain in full force and
effect as if the invalid provision had not been a part of this Agreement.
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C. Entire Agreement
This Agreement along with any addendum(s) or schedules constitutes the entire
Agreement between StoneRidge Retirement Living and Resident.
StoneRidge
Retirement Living shall not be responsible or liable for any statements, representations or
promises made by any person representing StoneRidge Retirement Living, unless such
statements, representations or promises are set forth in this Agreement. Furthermore, no
act, agreement or statement of any resident, or of an individual purchasing care for a
resident under any agreement to furnish care to the resident, shall constitute a valid
waiver of any provision of this agreement intended for the benefit or protection of the
resident or the individual purchasing care for the resident.
D.

Bindings

This Agreement is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns of the Resident and StoneRidge Retirement Living.
E.

Headings

Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect
in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
F.

Governance

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

G.

Notice

Notice, when required by the terms of this Agreement, shall be deemed to have been
properly given, if and when delivered personally or, if sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, when postmarked, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:
To StoneRidge Retirement Living:

Administrative Office
StoneRidge Retirement Living
440 East Lincoln Ave.
Myerstown, PA 17067

To Resident (Before Occupancy):

Name
Address
City, State Zip

PRESIDENT & CEO____________
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XI.

SCHEDULE OF FEES

NAME:
ACCOMMODATION:
ENTRANCE FEE: $
MONTHLY FEE: $
OCCUPANCY DATE:
OTHER CONDITIONS: NONE
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Resident and StoneRidge Retirement Living have set their hands and
signed this Agreement.

______________________________
WITNESS

____________________________
PRESIDENT & CEO

______________________________
WITNESS

_____________________________
RESIDENT:

______________________________
WITNESS

_____________________________
RESIDENT:

|
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Date Rescission Period Begins: Date
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO RESCIND

You may rescind and terminate your RESIDENCY AGREEMENT, without penalty or
forfeiture, within seven (7) days of the above date. You are not required to move into the
continuing care facility before the expiration of this seven (7) day period. No other agreement or
statement you sign shall constitute a waiver of your right to rescind your agreement within the
seven (7) day period.
To rescind your RESIDENCY AGREEMENT, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of
this Notice, or any other dated written notice, letter or telegram stating your desire to rescind to
StoneRidge Retirement Living, Myerstown, Pennsylvania, not later than midnight of Date.
Pursuant to this Notice, I hereby cancel my Reservation Agreement.

Date: __________________________

________________________________
Name
________________________________
Name

|
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RESIDENCY AGREEMENT
StoneRidge Retirement Living is a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to establish and operate StoneRidge Poplar Run as a
continuing care retirement community, located at 440-450 East Lincoln Avenue,
Myerstown, PA.
(Names) (referred to in this Agreement as “Resident”) has on this ___ day of (Month),
(Year), entered into this RESIDENCY AGREEMENT with StoneRidge Retirement
Living, (referred to as "StoneRidge" or "StoneRidge Retirement Living"), the terms of
which are set out below. (If two persons sign this Agreement, the word “Resident” shall
apply to them jointly and separately, as required by the context.)
I.

RESIDENTIAL LIVING SERVICES AND FACILITIES
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide Resident, who meets StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s Conditions of Occupancy, with the Residential Accommodation, common
facilities and designated services specified in this Agreement, beginning on the
Designated Occupancy Date or Occupancy, whichever is earlier.
A.

Living Accommodation

StoneRidge Retirement Living agrees that you shall have a personal and non-assignable
right to occupy a Living Accommodation in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.
B.

Furnishings

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide a refrigerator, range/oven, microwave,
carpeting, dishwasher, blinds and a garbage disposal. Resident may request optional
furnishings or fixtures at an additional charge. Upon installation, all additional
furnishings or fixtures immediately become the property of StoneRidge Retirement
Living and shall remain in the residence after termination of the Agreement.
PRESIDENT & CEO____________
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C.

Common Facilities

Resident may use, in common with other members of StoneRidge, the dining room, arts
and crafts area, beauty and barber shop, lobbies, lounges, library, designated laundry
facilities, recreation room, woodshop, music room and the conference room.
D.

Storage Facilities

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide one storage unit in a designated area for
your apartment unit.
E.

Structural Changes and Redecoration

Structural or physical change or redecoration to the accommodation may be made only
with the written approval of the StoneRidge Retirement Living administrative staff. The
cost of such alterations and restoration to original condition, except that cost due to
normal wear and tear, shall be paid by the Resident.
F.

Utilities

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide, as part of the Monthly Fee, water, sewer,
heat, electricity, air conditioning, and basic TV service.
G.

Telephone

A monthly usage fee established by StoneRidge Retirement Living and any other
telephone service charges, including long distance service charges, are not included in the
Monthly Fee and shall be paid by the Resident.
H.

Maintenance and Repair Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall repair, maintain and replace equipment owned by
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
The Resident will be responsible for repairs,
maintenance and replacement of the Resident’s personal property.
I.

Grounds

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide grounds keeping, lawn care, snow removal
and trash removal from designated areas.

PRESIDENT & CEO____________
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J.

Dining Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living makes available a variety of dining opportunities.
Procedures for the dining services are as follows:

K.

1.

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide, as part of this contract, a
meal credit as part of the monthly fee. The details of this credit and its
availability are explained in the Resident Handbook and may change from
time to time. Resident shall choose how they desire to utilize the credit
based on the personal preference.

2.

Meal delivery service in the event of illness shall be provided at no
additional charge for an unlimited period of time; however StoneRidge
reserves the right to evaluate resident abilities on an individual basis.
Residents must provide StoneRidge Retirement Living with a physician’s
order indicating the need for sick tray service for periods longer than two
(2) days.

3.

StoneRidge Retirement Living may accommodate special diets with a
separate charge for diets requiring special preparation.

4.

Additional meal plans may be available upon request.

5.

Guest meals will be available at prevailing rates

Housekeeping

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide light housekeeping services on a regular
basis in accordance with the policy established in the Resident Handbook.
L.

Transportation

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide transportation, according to a predetermined schedule and route, for medical appointments within a pre-determined radius.
Scheduled transportation is also provided to local shopping centers, supermarkets and
churches. Additional transportation services are available for an additional fee.
M.

Security

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide security services, including an electronic
entry system as described in the Resident Handbook.
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N.

Parking

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide one designated parking space for each
Residence.
O.

Scope of Services

StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to revise the services included in the
Monthly Fee and to adjust the Monthly Fee appropriately.

II.

MEDICAL AND EMERGENCY SERVICES
A.

Emergency Response System

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide each residence with a call system by which
Resident can contact StoneRidge Retirement Living personnel available to respond
twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, to assess the Resident’s need. If
there is a need for additional or emergency medical assistance, StoneRidge Retirement
Living shall contact emergency or other health care providers.
While the call system may be used to inform StoneRidge Retirement Living of a medical
emergency or a security concern, StoneRidge Retirement Living disclaims any and all
responsibility for responding to medical emergencies and for any liability for any injury
or damages resulting from mechanical failure of the emergency call system.
B.

Home Health Care Services

Home Health Care Services available at StoneRidge Retirement Living on a fee-for
service basis include skilled nursing care, physical, occupational, speech, respiratory, and
enterostomal therapies, home infusion services and supplies, and social services for the
homebound. The scope and details concerning these services can be found in the Resident
Handbook. Resident has the right to secure other outside services with approval from
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
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StoneRidge Retirement Living does not assume responsibility for the scope of care
provided by outside home or health care personnel. Such services are hired at the sole
discretion of Resident. Resident is required to confirm that any approved provider of
such services has worker’s compensation insurance coverage. Resident releases
StoneRidge Retirement Living from any liability for any damages or injuries caused to
Resident, other Resident or staff, by any home or health care personnel not employed by
StoneRidge Retirement Living.
C.

Emergency Transportation

Emergency Transportation is available through annual membership with a local First Aid
Unit. It is the responsibility of the Resident to enroll in and maintain annual membership.
Further information is available in the Resident Handbook.

D.

Limitations on Care

The Health Care Center is not designed to care for persons who abuse alcohol or drugs or
who are afflicted with serious mental illness and require specialized psychiatric care or
services not authorized or permitted under the nursing or personal care licensure
regulations. If StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that Resident’s mental or
physical condition is such that Resident’s continued presence in StoneRidge Retirement
Living is either dangerous or detrimental to the life, health, safety of Resident or other
Resident, or the peaceful enjoyment of StoneRidge Retirement Living by other Resident,
StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident to an appropriate outside care
facility at Resident’s expense. StoneRidge Retirement Living’s determination shall be
made in writing and signed by the Medical Director and the Administrator of StoneRidge
Retirement Living. Resident shall continue to pay the Monthly Fee in accordance with
the terms of this agreement until termination of said agreement.
III.

NURSING CARE AND ASSISTED LIVING SERVICES
A.

Health Care Center

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall operate Assisted Living and Nursing Care facilities
in the Health Care Center which are licensed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall make available, for an additional charge, Assisted
Living services in private or semi-private accommodations and routine Nursing Care
Services in semi-private accommodations on a temporary or permanent basis. Resident
shall sign an admission agreement upon transfer to either the Assisted Living or Nursing
Care facilities, which agreements will supplement the terms of this Agreement.
PRESIDENT & CEO ____________
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B.

Authority To Transfer

StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident from and between the Residential
Accommodation and the Health Care Center for any of the following reasons:
1.

StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that the Resident is
unable to satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy for the Residential
Accommodation.

2.

StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that such a move should
be made.
(a)

For the proper operation of StoneRidge

(b)

To comply with regulations of the Department of
Public Welfare, the Pennsylvania Department of
Health, regulations of the local Fire Department, or
any other duly constituted authorities or agencies;
or

(c)

To meet the requirements of law.

In the event that there is insufficient space in the Health Care Center at such time as
Resident may require assisted living or nursing care services, then StoneRidge
Retirement Living may transfer Resident to an outside facility selected by Resident or
StoneRidge Retirement Living until such time as a nursing bed or assisted living
accommodation becomes available.
If Resident’s physical or mental health has deteriorated to the degree that Resident's
presence in StoneRidge is detrimental to Resident or to the health, safety or peace of
other Resident, or if Resident is unable to meet the admission criteria for the HealthCare
Center, StoneRidge Retirement Living may transfer Resident to a hospital, or other
outside healthcare provider.
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C.

Transfer Procedures

The Resident or responsible party will be consulted in advance to the extent possible.
Recommendations for relocation to the Health Care Center will be reviewed internally in
accordance with the utilization review procedures in effect at the time. Full consideration
will be given to the Resident’s or responsible party’s wishes in this process. However,
StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to make the final decision in the best
interest of the overall facility operation and the health, safety and well being of the other
Resident.
D.

Temporary or Permanent Nature of Transfer

StoneRidge Retirement Living, in accordance with its utilization review procedures, shall
be responsible to determine whether the transfer is temporary or permanent and whether
Resident is able to satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy. StoneRidge Retirement Living's
decision regarding the temporary or permanent nature of any transfer may be made prior
to the lapse of thirty (30) days from the date of transfer or at any other time deemed
appropriate by StoneRidge Retirement Living. If Resident’s transfer is temporary,
Resident may retain possession of the Residential Accommodation for the purpose of
resuming residency.
Resident shall continue to pay the applicable monthly fee while receiving services in the
HealthCare Center.
If Resident’s transfer is permanent, Resident’s Residential
Accommodation shall be released (if not occupied by a Co-Resident) and made available
for occupancy by another Resident. Resident and/or Resident’s responsible party shall be
notified and given thirty (30) days to remove personal possessions.
E.

Costs Related to Transfer to the Health Care Center or Other Health Care Facility

Resident may incur a transportation charge to be relocated to another facility. Terms of
the other facilities charges or the reservation of your residential living accommodation
are outlined below.
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1. Health Care Center
Resident shall pay the applicable Daily Rate set forth in StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s Rate Schedule for routine assisted living or nursing care services in
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Health Care Center. A description of the routine
assisted living and nursing care services covered by and included in the Daily
Rate and ancillary services not covered by or included in the Daily Rate is
contained in StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Rate Schedule, which is subject to
change from time to time. StoneRidge Retirement Living reserves the right to
determine the scope and extent of services provided in the Health Care Center.
Certain higher acuity or higher level of care services, such as ventilator
dependency care, may not be available. To the extent that StoneRidge Retirement
Living provides any specialized, non-routine nursing care services for higher
levels of care, those services shall be provided at an additional charge over and
above the Daily Rate.
2. Other Health Care Facility
Resident shall pay all costs and charges for care in any personal or nursing care
facility to which Resident may be transferred because of insufficient space in the
Health Care Center or because Resident is unable to meet the criteria for
admission to the Health Care Center. Resident shall pay all costs and charges
related to Resident’s transfer to and occupancy of any other health care facility.
3. Reservation of Living Accommodation
In the case of Single Occupancy, during any temporary transfer to the Health Care
Center or other health care facility, Resident shall continue to pay the then current
applicable Monthly Fee to reserve the residential accommodation. Upon the
permanent transfer of Resident to the Health Care Center or other health care
facility and surrender of the residential accommodation, the obligation to pay the
Monthly Fee shall cease.
In the case of Double Occupancy, Co-Resident shall continue to pay the then
current applicable Monthly Fee for Co-Resident’s continued Occupancy of the
residential accommodation or to reserve the accommodation.
Upon the permanent transfer of both Co-Resident to the Health Care Center or
other health care facility, the obligation to pay the Monthly Fee shall cease.
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F.

Return to Residence after Transfer

If, following permanent transfer, and after release of a Residential Accommodation,
StoneRidge Retirement Living determines that Resident has recovered sufficiently to
satisfy the Conditions of Occupancy of a Residential Accommodation, Resident shall
receive the first available accommodation with a floor plan comparable to the one
relinquished.
G.

StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Obligation

StoneRidge Retirement Living agrees that the Resident shall not be liable to a health care
provider for services, which StoneRidge has agreed to provide under this Agreement. In
the event a health care provider seeks payment from the Resident, StoneRidge Retirement
Living shall assume liability for payment of the health care services rendered, if the
health care services rendered are services which StoneRidge has agreed to furnish to the
Resident in consideration of the Resident’s payment of the Entrance Fee and Monthly
Fees. For purposes of this paragraph, the term “health care provider” shall include
employees of StoneRidge Retirement Living, on a fee-for-service basis, or otherwise.
IV.

RESIDENTIAL LIVING FEES
A.

Application Fee

Resident shall pay to StoneRidge Retirement Living a non-refundable Application Fee at
the time of submitting the preliminary application for admission.
B.

Entrance Fee

The Entrance Fee that is paid by Resident, is a fee to purchase a contract for services
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and is paid as a condition of
entrance to StoneRidge Retirement Living. The Resident is required to pay the Entrance
Fee in accordance with the payment schedule at paragraph C. StoneRidge Retirement
Living may use and apply these fees to any proper corporate purpose.
C.

Payment Schedule
1.

Resident shall pay, no later than thirty (30) days from the date of notice
from StoneRidge Retirement Living of final approval of Resident’s
application, five percent (5%) of the Entrance Fee as a reservation deposit.

2.

The reservation deposit is fully credited against the Entrance Fee
for the accommodation selected by the Resident.
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3.

D.

The Resident shall pay the remaining balance of ninety-five percent (95%)
of the Entrance Fee, on or before the Designated Occupancy Date or
Occupancy, whichever is earlier.

Monthly Fee

Resident shall pay to StoneRidge Retirement Living a Monthly Fee for services provided.
Procedure and terms are as follows:

V.

1.

The Monthly Fee is due upon receipt which will be in the form of a
monthly statement. The monthly statement will arrive on or before the 5th
day of each month. Interest will be charged for fees not paid by the 7th
day of that month at a rate of one percent (1%).

2.

Payment of the full Monthly Fee begins on the Designated Occupancy
Date. If Resident does not assume Occupancy by the 90th day after
payment of the reservation deposit, the monthly fee will be due as in
Paragraph F.1.

3.

The Monthly Fee may be adjusted from time to time. StoneRidge
Retirement Living will provide at least thirty (30) day’s advance written
notice of any changes in the Monthly Fee.

4.

The Monthly Statement may include charges for miscellaneous, ancillary
or other services.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE POLICY
It is StoneRidge Retirement Living’s policy that this Residency Agreement shall not be
terminated solely because of Resident’s financial inability to pay the Monthly Fee or
other charges, if (a) Resident presents to StoneRidge Retirement Living’s administration
facts which justify financial assistance, and (b) any necessary financial assistance can be
granted or continued without impairing the ability of StoneRidge Retirement Living to
provide care for its other Resident and to attain its objectives while operating on a sound
financial basis. Below is a general outline of how the policy operates:
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A.

To be eligible for financial assistance, Resident shall not have transferred, gifted
or depleted resources in contemplation of the execution of this Agreement, or
subsequently, which were represented as being available or which would impair
resident’s ability to satisfy Resident’s financial obligations under this Agreement.
Resident agrees to provide initial and ongoing financial information as required.

B.

In the event that Resident’s income is or becomes insufficient to pay the monthly
expenses incurred, Resident shall take all necessary steps to sell and liquidate
capital assets and other resources in order to fulfill Resident’s financial
obligations to StoneRidge Retirement Living.

C.

It is the Resident’s responsibility to seek all other available sources of financial
assistance including family, church or social welfare agencies which may be in a
position to render financial assistance.

D.

Resident is required to apply for, and to take the steps necessary to obtain, if
qualified, financial assistance from any appropriate governmental agency.
Resident is required to report to StoneRidge Retirement Living any material
increase in Resident’s assets or the assets value.

E.

Resident shall not sell or otherwise transfer property for less than the fair market
value of the property without the written consent of StoneRidge Retirement
Living. Resident’s estate shall be liable for any amount of subsidy provided by
StoneRidge Retirement Living to Resident, and such amount shall be deducted
from the funds otherwise due Resident’s estate as a refund under this Agreement.

F.

If financial assistance is granted, there is no guarantee that such assistance can or
will continue indefinitely, or for any specific period of time. The amount of any
subsidy shall be determined solely by StoneRidge Retirement Living in
accordance with this financial assistance policy.
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VI.

MARRIAGE AND/OR ADDITIONAL OCCUPANTS
A.

Non-Resident

In the event that a single Resident wishes to marry or have another person enter
StoneRidge Retirement Living and share Resident’s Residential Accommodation as a CoResident, the proposed Additional Occupant must file an application for admission and
meet the Conditions of Occupancy and other admission requirements applicable to
Resident of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Admittance of an additional Occupant shall
be at the sole discretion of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Upon approval, the Monthly
Fee shall be increased to the Double Occupancy rate.
If StoneRidge determines that the non-Resident does not meet the Conditions of
Occupancy and other admission requirements for StoneRidge Retirement Living, the
Resident shall be entitled to terminate the Agreement in accordance with the termination
provisions set forth in this Agreement.
B.

Other Resident

In the event that Resident desires either to marry another Resident or to share a
Residential Accommodation with another Resident, Resident shall select and designate in
writing at least ninety (90) days in advance of the proposed move, which one of the two
individual residences shall be thereafter occupied jointly. Upon transfer, the Monthly Fee
for Double Occupancy of the designated Residential Accommodation shall be paid. The
Residency Agreement shall be amended accordingly.
VII.

TERMINATION/ RECISSION OF AGREEMENT
The following is an outline as to the types of Termination or Rescission of this
Agreement that may occur and the associated procedure we will follow:
A.

Termination by Resident
1.

Resident may terminate this Agreement within seven (7) days of execution
by signing the attached Notice of Right to Rescind and delivering it to
StoneRidge Retirement Living.

2.

After the lapse of the seven (7) day rescission period, but prior to the
Designated Occupancy Date, Resident may terminate this Agreement by
delivering written notice to StoneRidge Retirement Living.
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3.

B.

After Occupancy, Resident may terminate this Agreement by delivery of
ninety (90) days prior written notice to StoneRidge Retirement Living.
Termination is effective upon surrender of the Residential
Accommodation. The Resident's obligation regarding the Monthly Fee
continues as long as the Resident occupies the accommodation.

Termination by StoneRidge Retirement Living
1.

At any time prior to Occupancy, StoneRidge Retirement Living may
terminate this Agreement for failure of Resident to meet the Conditions of
Occupancy or any other cause by delivery of written notice to Resident.

2.

StoneRidge Retirement Living may terminate this Agreement after
Occupancy upon a
determination of just cause and delivery of thirty
(30) days written notice or upon delivery of such written notice as is
reasonable under the circumstances, to Resident or Resident’s
representative.
The refund provisions of this Agreement shall apply to termination for just
cause in the same manner as such provisions would apply to any other
termination. “Just cause” includes but is not limited to:

C.

(a)

Material misrepresentation or omissions on the financial or
medical forms.

(b)

Resident’s actions that create a serious threat to the life,
health, safety and peace of Resident or other Resident as
determined solely by StoneRidge Retirement Living

(c)

Breach or default of any of the terms of this Agreement

(d)

Willful and continuing violation of operating policies
defined in the Resident’s Handbook

Incapacity or Death Prior to Residency
1.

Single Occupancy: If death occurs prior to occupancy, or if through
illness, injury or incapacity the Resident is precluded from becoming a
Resident under the terms of this Agreement, this Agreement is
automatically rescinded.
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The Resident’s legal representative shall receive a full refund of all
moneys paid to StoneRidge Retirement Living less the application fee and
any Monthly Fees paid, and those costs specifically incurred at the request
of the Resident.
2.

Double Occupancy: If death of one of two co-Resident occurs prior to
occupancy, the surviving co-resident may terminate this agreement or
amend it to single occupancy. If terminated, the Co-Resident shall receive
a refund of all monies paid to StoneRidge Retirement Living less the
application fee and any Monthly Fees paid, and those costs specifically
incurred at the request of the Resident.

VIII. ENTRANCE FEE REFUND
There is no refund associated with this contract. The Resident surrenders the full
Entrance Fee on the date of occupancy.
IX.

RESIDENT RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS
A.

Right of Self Organization

Resident of StoneRidge Retirement Living shall have the right of self-organization.
B.

Right to Receive Disclosure Statements

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall deliver to Resident at the time of the execution of
this Agreement, and at least annually thereafter, a copy of its Disclosure Statement.
C.

Guest Privileges

Resident shall be authorized to entertain and accommodate guests in the Resident’s
accommodation for a period not to exceed fourteen (14) consecutive days or twenty-eight
(28) days annually for the same individual visitor(s). In the event the stay exceeds
twenty-eight (28) days, prior approval needs to be requested.
D.

Rights to Property

The Resident is not entitled to any right, title or interest in the real or personal property or
any other assets of StoneRidge Retirement Living.
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E.

Facility Access to Individual Residence

Resident shall permit StoneRidge Retirement Living personnel to enter the private
residence for the purpose of making reasonable maintenance inspections and repairs.
StoneRidge Retirement Living shall have the right to enter the Residential
Accommodation to perform scheduled housekeeping, to respond to medical alerts, to
respond to the fire alarm system, or in other appropriate circumstances.
F.

Use of Individual Residence

Resident shall maintain the Residential Accommodation in a clean, sanitary, and orderly
condition. Failure to do so will permit StoneRidge Retirement Living to have the right to
take any remedial action and the cost of such action shall be charged to Resident.
Damage to the individual residence beyond ordinary wear and tear is the responsibility of
Resident and costs for such repairs will be billed to the Resident or the Resident’s Estate
G.

Health Insurance and Third Party Payments

Resident must maintain certain insurances and agree to follow the procedures
below:
1.

Resident shall procure and maintain in force at his or her own expense
maximum coverage available to the Resident under the Federal
Government’s Social Security programs (“Medicare A and B”), and at
least one Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance policy such as those
offered by the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans, to cover skilled nursing
services, or such other comparable medical insurance plan which provides
equivalent benefits and is approved in writing by StoneRidge Retirement
Living.

2.

Should the Resident fail to arrange for such medical insurance coverage,
the Resident hereby authorizes StoneRidge Retirement Living to make
application on his or her behalf; to pay for the Resident any premiums in
connection with such insurance; and to bill these costs to the Resident on
the monthly statement.
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H.

3.

If Resident becomes eligible to receive payments from any third party for
services provided under this Agreement, Resident shall at all times
cooperate fully with StoneRidge and each third-party payor so that
StoneRidge may make claim for and receive any applicable third party
payments. StoneRidge Retirement Living has the right to any applicable
benefits payable to StoneRidge Retirement Living under the insurance
coverage required by this Agreement.

4.

Resident may only enroll in a health maintenance organization (“HMO”)
or other managed care plan providing equivalent Medicare benefits with
the written consent of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Prior to enrolling in
any HMO or managed care plan, Resident shall sign an addendum
identifying the plan and reflecting StoneRidge Retirement Living’s
approval or disapproval.

5.

In the event that Resident’s HMO does not agree to provide payment for
services provided by StoneRidge Retirement Living and Resident is
transferred to another provider, Resident shall continue to pay the Monthly
Fee and additionally all costs and charges related to the transfer to and
occupancy of the other provider.

Other Insurance

StoneRidge Retirement Living shall provide insurance on StoneRidge Retirement
Living’s property only. Resident is required to purchase and maintain personal property
insurance and comprehensive liability insurance. Resident is solely responsible for
insurance on his/her own automobile.
I.

Power of Attorney

Resident will supply StoneRidge Retirement Living a true and correct copy of a signed
and notarized general durable power of attorney naming a third party of the Resident’s
choice as his/her attorney-in-fact in conjunction with the execution of this agreement.
The attorney-in-fact shall be authorized to conduct business or financial transactions in
the event of the Resident’s incapacity or disability. Resident agrees to maintain a valid
Power of Attorney at all times during residency.
J.

Advance Directives

Resident will supply StoneRidge Retirement Living with a copy of any advance
directives, such as a living will, existing at the time of this agreement or executed in the
future.
PRESIDENT & CEO____________
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K.

Change of Accommodation

Resident has the option to move from the Residential Accommodation identified in this
Agreement to another accommodation within StoneRidge, if available and approved by
the Staff. Resident’s request for change must be submitted in writing to StoneRidge
Retirement Living. At the time an accommodation becomes available Resident must
submit a current financial statement.
If StoneRidge approves and Resident moves to a larger Residential accommodation,
Resident shall pay the difference between the Entrance Fee paid and the current Entrance
Fee for the requested Residential Accommodation. The Entrance Fee paid upon transfer
to a larger Residential Accommodation shall be amortized in the same proportion as the
prior Entrance Fee is amortized as of the date of the transfer.
L.

Rights to Property/Subordination

Resident is not entitled to any right, title or interest in the real or personal property or any
other assets of StoneRidge Retirement Living. Any rights, privileges, or benefits under
this Agreement, including Resident’s right to a full or partial refund, shall be subordinate
to any existing or subsequent interest in the real or personal property of StoneRidge
Retirement Living.
M.

Injury Caused by Others

StoneRidge Retirement Living is not responsible for any injury, illness or damage caused
to the Resident or their property by the negligence or willful misconduct of another
Resident or other third party.
N.

Policies/Rules/Regulations

Resident agrees to abide by all the policies of StoneRidge Retirement Living currently in
effect and hereafter adopted. Current policies and future revisions will be available to the
Resident.
O.

Limitations on Increases in the Entrance Fee

Charges for health services paid in one lump sum in the form of the Entrance Fee shall
not be increased or changed during the term of this Agreement, except for changes
required by state or federal assistance programs.

PRESIDENT & CEO ____________
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X.

MISCELLANEOUS
A. Average Annual Cost of Services
The average annual cost of providing care and services during the most recent twelve
month period for which a report is available for a Resident is stated in the annual copy of
StoneRidge Retirement Living’s Disclosure Statement.
B. Severability
The various provisions of this Agreement shall be severable one from another. If any
provision of this Agreement is found by a court or administrative body of proper
jurisdiction and authority to be invalid, the other provisions shall remain in full force and
effect as if the invalid provision had not been a part of this Agreement.
C. Entire Agreement
This Agreement along with any addendum(s) or schedules constitutes the entire
Agreement between StoneRidge Retirement Living and Resident.
StoneRidge
Retirement Living shall not be responsible or liable for any statements, representations or
promises made by any person representing StoneRidge Retirement Living, unless such
statements, representations or promises are set forth in this Agreement. Furthermore, no
act, agreement or statement of any resident, or of an individual purchasing care for a
resident under any agreement to furnish care to the resident, shall constitute a valid
waiver of any provision of this agreement intended for the benefit or protection of the
resident or the individual purchasing care for the resident.
D.

Bindings

This Agreement is binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns of the Resident and StoneRidge Retirement Living.
E.

Headings

Headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect
in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
F.

Governance

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

PRESIDENT & CEO ____________
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G.

Notice

Notice, when required by the terms of this Agreement, shall be deemed to have been
properly given, if and when delivered personally or, if sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, when postmarked, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:
To StoneRidge Retirement Living:

Administrative Office
StoneRidge Retirement Living
440 East Lincoln Ave.
Myerstown, PA 17067

To Resident (Before Occupancy):

(Names)
(Street)
(City, State, Zip)

PRESIDENT & CEO____________

RESIDENT INITIAL____________
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XI.

SCHEDULE OF FEES

NAME:
ACCOMMODATION:
ENTRANCE FEE:
MONTHLY FEE:
OCCUPANCY DATE:
OTHER CONDITIONS:
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Resident and StoneRidge Retirement Living have set their hands and
signed this Agreement.

______________________________
WITNESS

____________________________
PRESIDENT & CEO

_____________________________
WITNESS

_____________________________
RESIDENT:

_____________________________
WITNESS

_____________________________
RESIDENT:

|
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Date Rescission Period Begins: (Date)
NOTICE OF RIGHT TO RESCIND

You may rescind and terminate your RESIDENCY AGREEMENT, without penalty or
forfeiture, within seven (7) days of the above date. You are not required to move into the
continuing care facility before the expiration of this seven (7) day period. No other agreement or
statement you sign shall constitute a waiver of your right to rescind your agreement within the
seven (7) day period.
To rescind your RESIDENCY AGREEMENT, mail or deliver a signed and dated copy of
this Notice, or any other dated written notice, letter or telegram stating your desire to rescind to
StoneRidge Retirement Living, Myerstown, Pennsylvania, not later than midnight of (Date).
Pursuant to this Notice, I hereby cancel my Reservation Agreement.

Date: __________________________

________________________________
Name
________________________________
Name
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